Collective Bargained Agreement

between

Mansfield Professional Educators

The Mansfield School District #207

September 1, 2022 – August 31, 2025

Table of Contents

PREAMBLE		4	
ARTICLE I - ADMINISTRATION SECTION 1. DEFINITIONS SECTION 2. RECOGNITION SECTION 3. STATUS OF AGREEMED SECTION 4. CONFORMITY TO LAW SECTION 5. PRINTING/DISTRIBUTION SECTION 6. ADMINISTRATOR AVAILABLE 1.	V ION OF AGREEMENT	4 4 4 5 5 5 5 5	
ARTICLE II – BUSINESS SECTION 1. MANAGEMENT RIGHT SECTION 2. ASSOCIATION RIGHTS SECTION 3. DUES DEDUCTIONS AT SECTION 4. NO STRIKE - NO LOCK SECTION 5. AGREEMENT ADMINIS	S ND REPRESENTATION FEES KOUT	5 5 5 6 6 6	
ARTICLE III - EMPLOYEE RIGHTS SECTION 1. HIRING PRACTICES SECTION 2. NON-DISCRIMINATION SECTION 3. EMPLOYEE RESPONSI SECTION 4. INDIVIDUAL CONTRAINS SECTION 5. DUE PROCESS SECTION 6. PERSONNEL FILES SECTION 7. EMPLOYEE PROTECTI SECTION 8. ASSIGNMENT AND TR SECTION 9. JOB SHARING	N IBILITIES ICTS	7 7 7 7 7 8 8 8 9 9	
ARTICLE IV - EVALUATION/PROB SECTION 1. PURPOSE SECTION 2. EVALUATOR QUALIFI SECTION 3. APPLICABILITY FOR E SECTION 4. CLASSROOM TEACHE SECTION 5. NON CLASSROOM TEA	ICATIONS EVAL. PROCESS IR EVAL. PROCESS	1 1 1 1	0 1 1 2 9
ARTICLE V - LAYOFF AND RECAL SECTION 1. DEFINITION OF LAYOUS SECTION 2. PROGRAMS AND SERVE SECTION 3. EMPLOYEE RETENTION SECTION 4. LAYOFF PROCEDURE SECTION 5. SENIORITY SECTION 6. EMPLOYMENT POOL SECTION 7. RECALL BENEFITS	FF VICES DN	2 2 2 2 2 2 2	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
ARTICLE VI - INSTRUCTION SECTION 1. PREPARATION TIME SECTION 2. WORK LOAD (CLASS S SECTION 3. STUDENT DISCIPLINE SECTION 4. ACADEMIC FREEDOM SECTION 5. EMPLOYEE FACILITIE	i I	2 2 2 2	13 13 13 14 14
ARTICLE VII - LEAVES SECTION 1. GENERAL LEAVE SECTION 2. SICK LEAVE SECTION 3. SICK LEAVE CASHOU' SECTION 4. MATERNITY/PATERNI SECTION 5. BEREAVEMENT LEAV SECTION 6. JURY DUTY/SUBPOEN SECTION 7. MILITARY LEAVE SECTION 8. PROFESSIONAL IMPROSECTION 9. PERSONAL LEAVE	ITY/ADOPTION LEAVE 'E IA LEAVE	2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	24 24 25 25 26 26 26 26
SECTION 9. PERSONAL LEAVE SECTION 10. OTHER LEAVE			26

ARTICLE VIII - FISCAL	27	
SECTION 1. WORK DAY	27	
SECTION 2. NON-PROFESSIONAL DUTIES	27	
SECTION 3. EMPLOYEE WORK YEAR	27	
SECTION 4. PER DIEM DAYS	27 27	
SECTION 5. EVALUATION OF CLASSIFIED STAFF SECTION 6. PAYMENT PROVISIONS	27	
SECTION 7. CREDITS TOWARD PLACEMENT ON SALARY SCHEDULE	27	
SECTION 8. COMPLIANCE AND SALARY SCHEDULE INCREASE	27	
SECTION 9. MEDICAL, DENTAL AND VISION INSURANCE	27	
SECTION 10. TRAVEL	28	
SECTION 11. SPECIAL EDUCATION TEACHERS	28	
ARTICLE IX - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	28	
SECTION 1. DEFINITIONS	28	
SECTION 2. PURPOSE SECTION 3. PROCEDURES	28 28	
SECTION 3. PROCEDURES SECTION 4. ARBITRATION	26 29	
SECTION 5. ELECTION OF REMEDIES	29	
SECTION 6. TIME LIMITS	29	
SECTION 7. REPRISALS	29	
SECTION 8. CONTINUITY OF GRIEVANCE	29	
ARTICLE X - DURATION	29	
SECTION 1. RATIFICATION/TERM OF AGREEMENT	29	
SECTION 2. SPECIAL CONSIDERATIONS SECTION 3. RE-OPENERS	30 30	
APPENDIX A-1 - SALARY SCHEDULE 2018-19	31	
APPENDIX B – CO-CURRICULAR SALARY SCHEDULE	32	
APPENDIX C-1 –TEACHER EVAL. – STUDENT GROWTH GOAL SETTING		
APPENDIX C-2 – TEACHER EVALUATION – COMPREHENSIVE		
APPENDIX C-3 – TEACHER EVALUATION – FOCUS 1-8	33	
APPENDIX C-4 OBSERVATION WORKSHEET COMPREHENSIVE		
APPENDIX C-5 OBSERVATION WORKSHEET – FOCUS 1-8	41	
APPENDIX C-6 – OBS. WORKSHEET AND REPORT - NONCLASSROOM TEACHER	49	
APPENDIX D - GRIEVANCE REVIEW REQUEST FORM	52	
APPENDIX F - JUST CAUS/SEVEN KEY TESTS	53	
APPENDIX G – TRANSFER REQUEST FORM	54	
APPENDIX H – PLAN OF SUCCESS	55	
SIGNATORIES	56	

PREAMBLE

This document is an Agreement between Parties. The hours, wages, terms and conditions of employment contained herein have been bargained and agreed to in accordance with the provisions of RCW 41.59, the Education Employment Relations Act.

ARTICLE I - ADMINISTRATION

SECTION 1. DEFINITIONS

- A. The *District/Board* shall mean the Mansfield School District No. 403, county of Mansfield, state of Washington.
- B. The Association shall mean the Mansfield Professional Educators.
- C. The *Parties* shall mean the District and the Association as co-signers of the Agreement.
- D. The *Agreement* shall mean the Collective Bargaining Agreement signed by the District and the Association.
- E. The term *Employee* when used hereinafter shall mean a member of the bargaining unit.
- F. Day shall mean school day, except during summer when it shall mean calendar day.
- G. Superintendent shall mean the chief administrator of the District.
- H. **President(s)** shall mean the presiding officer(s) of the Association.
- I. Contract shall mean the individual contract issued to each employee.

SECTION 2. RECOGNITION

The District recognizes the Association as the sole and exclusive bargaining representative for all full-time and parttime certificated personnel whether under contract or on leave and employed by the Board. Such representation shall exclude Superintendent, administrative assistant to the superintendent, and principals and vice-principals.

- 1. Substitute certificated employees employed by the District for more than thirty (30) days of work during any twelve (12) calendar month period ending in the current or immediately preceding school year and who continue to be available for employment as substitute teachers are included in the bargaining unit. They shall be compensated at the board-approved substitute daily rate.
- 2. Substitute certificated employees employed by the District for more than twenty (20) days in the same assignment or on a continuous uninterrupted assignment are also members of the bargaining unit and shall be compensated at their daily rate of pay at the appropriate step and column on the MPE salary schedule on their twenty-first (21st) consecutive day of continuous service.
- 3. Bargaining unit substitute employees shall not be afforded any other contractual rights under this Agreement.

SECTION 3. STATUS OF AGREEMENT

All employee contracts shall be subject to and consistent with Washington State law and the terms and conditions of this Agreement. If any employee contract contains any language inconsistent with this Agreement, this Agreement shall be controlling.

This Agreement shall supersede any rules, regulations, policies, resolutions, or practices of the District which shall be contrary to or inconsistent with its terms.

Unless otherwise provided in this Agreement, nothing contained herein shall be interpreted and/or applied so as to eliminate, reduce or otherwise detract from current individual salaries and economic benefits nor professional advantages.

SECTION 4. CONFORMITY TO LAW

If any provision of this Agreement is held to be invalid by operation of law, or a court of competent jurisdiction, such provision shall become inoperative, but the remainder of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect for the duration of this Agreement. In the event a provision(s) is determined to be contrary to law as stated above, such provision(s) shall be re- bargained.

SECTION 5. PRINTING/DISTRIBUTION OF AGREEMENT

As soon as possible, following the ratification and signing of this Agreement by the parties, both chief negotiators will proofread and prepare a final draft copy for printing. It is the District's responsibility to post the final document on the District's webpage. If hard copies need to be printed, quality and quantity will be mutually agreed to by the chief negotiators. Copies shall be provided to the District and the Association. Upon request the District shall provide an examination copy of the Agreement to any applicant for employment. The cost of printing shall be shared equally between the parties. The Association shall distribute copies to all employees and shall assume the responsibility of notifying the employees of the various provisions of the Agreement.

In the case of any disagreement on the actual language bargained, the signed tentative agreement shall prevail.

SECTION 6. ADMINISTRATOR AVAILABILITY

An administrator will be available for the building during the student day to handle discipline problems that progress beyond the teacher stage. When an administrator has to be away from the District, he/she will inform the respective business office as to which employee will be responsible for the building.

The building will have a written student discipline procedure available to employees.

ARTICLE II - BUSINESS

SECTION 1. MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

It is understood and agreed that with the exception of the provisions of this Agreement, the Board and the District retain all of the rights, powers, and authority established by law.

SECTION 2. ASSOCIATION RIGHTS

The Association and its representatives will be allowed to use District buildings for meetings when rooms are available and scheduled with the building principal for the purpose of transacting Association business.

The Association will be allowed to use District facilities and equipment including duplicating equipment, calculating machines, etc., and all types of audio-visual equipment at reasonable times when such equipment is not otherwise in use for Association business. All consumable items used will be paid for by the Association. The Association agrees to repair any equipment damaged as a result of its use. The Association will schedule the use of equipment with the building principal.

The Association will be allowed to post notices of activities and matters of Association concern on bulletin boards in each faculty lounge of each building in the District upon notification to the principal. The Association will be allowed to use the District email, mail service and employee mailboxes for communication purposes so long as such communications are labeled as Association materials and shall not constitute an unfair labor practice.

Upon request the District shall provide to the Association information as required under statute which will assist the Association in carrying out its responsibility as the bargaining representative.

The Association and its representatives will have access to all employees during times which will not interrupt instruction. Representatives shall check in at the building office prior to contacting employees.

Prior to meetings being scheduled during working hours, the Association shall declare the number of representatives that need to be released. Representatives duly authorized by the Association who participate during working hours in bargaining, grievance proceedings, or meetings with representatives of the District, shall suffer no loss of pay.

Union time during first in-service day (1 hour)

General membership association meetings will not be held during the work day without prior agreement from the District.

During a work stoppage, the provisions of this Section may be withheld.

SECTION 3. DUES DEDUCTIONS AND REPRESENTATION FEES

On or before the 10th day of September the Association shall give written notice to the Superintendent or designee of the dollar amount of dues and assessments of the Association which dues and assessments are to be deducted in the coming school year under all payroll deduction. The total for these deductions shall not be subject to change during the school year.

Association Dues - Reference RCW 41.59.060. The Association shall have the right to have deducted from the salary of members of the Association, upon receipt of a written authorization form, an amount equal to the fees and dues required for membership in the Association.

The dues deduction form and authorization shall remain in effect from year to year, unless withdrawn in writing by the employee.

Representation Fees - Reference RCW 41.59.100. No member of the bargaining unit will be required to join the Association; however, those employees who are not Association members but are employees will be determined by the Association, and transmitted to the Business Office in writing.

In the event that the representation fee is regarded by an employee as a violation of the right to non- association, such bona fide objections will be resolved according to the provisions of RCW

41.59.100, or the Public Employment Relations Commission.

The Association agrees to defend and hold the District harmless against any legal action brought against the District in reference to the Representation Fee deduction.

SECTION 4. NO STRIKE - NO LOCKOUT

During the duration of this agreement, the Association and its members shall not take part in a strike, work stoppage, or work slowdown, and the district shall not initiate a lock-out of its employees.

SECTION 5. AGREEMENT ADMINISTRATION - INTERPRETATION

Both parties agree to use their best efforts to comply with the terms and conditions of the Agreement. Upon request by either party, the Association officials and District administrators shall meet either before or after classes to discuss school problems relating to administration interpretation or compliance with this Agreement.

ARTICLE III - EMPLOYEE RIGHTS

SECTION 1. HIRING PRACTICES

The Board shall hire employees who are properly credentialed in accordance with applicable state laws, Washington Administrative Code and by such other requirements as specified by the Office of the Superintendent of Public Instruction. Except in the event that reference checks yield unfavorable information. Candidates that are in process of completing certification will not be excluded.

All employees shall be placed on the annual salary schedule in accordance with the criteria for salary schedule placement as contained in the Agreement. Substitutes who work twenty (20) consecutive days in the same position shall be placed on the annual salary schedule beginning the twenty-first (21) day.

SECTION 2. NON-DISCRIMINATION

There shall be no discrimination against any employee or applicant for employment by reason of race, color, creed, religion, marital status, sex, age, national origin, honorably-discharged veteran or military status, sexual orientation including gender expression or identity, the presence of any sensory, mental or physical disability or the use of a trained dog guide or service animal by a person with a disability; and the Board will not discriminate against any employee with respect to hours, wages, or terms of conditions of employment by reason of his/her membership in the Association, his/her participation in collective bargaining with the Board, or his/her institution of any grievance, complaint, or proceeding under this Agreement. The parties will cooperate to assure compliance with District policies and non-discriminatory laws.

Employees shall be entitled to full rights of citizenship and no religious or political activities outside of school time or the lack thereof shall be grounds for any discipline or discrimination with respect to the professional employment of such employee. The private and personal life of any employee is not within the appropriate concern or attention of the District, unless it adversely affects an employee's ability to perform his/her job.

SECTION 3. EMPLOYEE RESPONSIBILITIES

Employees shall comply with all District policies, rules, and regulations, which are not contrary to this Agreement and the requirements of all statutory laws and administrative codes.

Employees shall be responsible for the supervision of school property and for the supervision of students under school-related circumstances.

The employee shall care for and be responsible for instructional materials and equipment which have been checked out to him/her and shall promptly report damage, loss, theft of equipment, furniture or fixtures to his/her supervisor.

SECTION 4. INDIVIDUAL CONTRACTS

Contracts for employees of the District shall be issued by June 1 and shall be signed by the employee and returned within ten (10) business days. A copy signed by the Superintendent will be returned to the employee in a timely manner. Any extension of contract days shall be computed in full per diem of that individual's contracted rate of pay. An extension of a contract for a part-time employee shall be computed on a per diem basis or the in-service rate, whichever is greater.

The District shall advise employees in writing not later than May 15, or if the omnibus appropriates act has not passed the legislature by May 15, then notification shall be no later than June 15, if the employee's regular contract is not renewed for the coming year.

There shall be a supplementary employee contract for specified extracurricular and special assignments, which shall not exceed one (1) year and shall be in accordance with statutory provisions. The District shall advise employees in writing not later July 1 if the employee's supplemental contract is not renewed for the coming year. Such non-renewals shall not be made in an arbitrary or capricious manner. The District shall state the probable cause or causes in writing to the employee.

SECTION 5. DUE PROCESS

No employee shall be disciplined (including written warnings, reprimands, suspensions, discharges, non-renewals*, terminations or other actions that would adversely affect the employee) without just and sufficient cause (see Appendix F). The specific grounds forming the basis for disciplinary action will be made available to the employee in writing.

An employee has the right to have a representative from the Association and/or legal counsel present when formally being questioned in any meeting which may lead to being reprimanded, warned, disciplined, or adversely affected.

*Non-renewal protection under "Just Cause" shall not be applicable to provisional employees.

In cases where the health, safety and well-being of students, other employees or District patrons necessitates immediate disciplinary or safeguarding action, the District may place the affected employee on paid investigative leave pending a full and fair investigation and shall notify the Association within twenty-four (24) hours that action has been taken. "Investigative" leave may be changed to "administrative" leave if the employee is found responsible for inappropriate actions.

The Board agrees to follow a policy of progressive discipline which minimally includes a written warning, reprimand, suspension, with non-renewal or discharge as a final, last resort. Both parties agree that there are exceptional cases of gross misconduct where progressive discipline may not apply. Any disciplinary action taken against an employee shall be appropriate to the behavior which precipitates said action.

A valid complaint made against an employee by any parent, student, or other person will be promptly called to the attention of the employee within twenty-four (24) hours of determining validity of the complaint, unless the complaint involves criminal misconduct and has been filed with legal authorities. In all valid cases of complaints, the District must provide a copy of the complaint to the employee prior to any District investigation unless the District is precluded from doing so by non-District legal authorities; and provide the employee the opportunity to meet and to address the findings of any complaint subsequent to said investigation, and, prior to the issuance of any action by the District. If, after investigating such allegation of misconduct by an employee, the District chooses not to reprimand, discipline, or take adverse action against the employee, the employee will receive written notice to such effect, but no record will appear in an employee's personal file. All documents in the District's possession regarding the allegation and proof of the investigation will be kept by the District in a confidential file separate from any employee personnel files, if the District chooses not to reprimand, discipline, or take adverse action.

SECTION 6. PERSONNEL FILES

Employees or former employees shall, upon request, have the right to inspect all contents of their personnel file within the District. Personnel files shall be inspected in the presence of an administrator or designee in the Business Office. Upon request, a copy of any documents contained therein shall be afforded the employee at the District's expense. No secret, duplicate, alternate or other personnel file shall be kept anywhere in the District. A separate file for processed grievances, if any, shall be kept apart from the employee's personnel file.

Anyone, at the employee's request, may be present at this review.

Any derogatory material not shown to an employee within ten (10) days after receipt or after completion of an investigation shall not be allowed as evidence in any grievance or in any disciplinary action against such employee.

No evaluation, correspondence, or other material making derogatory references to an employee's competence, character, or manner shall be kept or placed in the employee's personnel file without the employee's knowledge and exclusive right to attach his/her own written comments.

Upon request by the employee, the Superintendent or designee shall sign an inventory sheet to verify contents of the personnel file at the time of said inspection by said employee, providing the inventory shall be provided by the employee and verified by the District.

Nothing shall be copied from an employee's personnel file without the written consent of that employee. All derogatory materials shall be purged from an Employee's file after three (3) years of date of material unless a shorter time is stated in the written documentation, providing that there are no repetitions within three (3) years; however, such deletion shall not occur while any school, OSPI, or law enforcement investigation or proceeding is in progress.

Records of any investigative action, as required by law, in which records must be kept, shall be maintained in a separate file from the employee's personnel file after three (3) years.

SECTION 7. EMPLOYEE PROTECTION

Any case of assault upon an employee (and/or acts of intimidation, bullying and harassment) during the actual performance of his/her duties shall be promptly reported to the employee's direct supervisor or superintendent.

- Certificated staff, when appropriate, shall be informed as soon as possible when they are potentially exposed to
 contagious diseases or illnesses and they shall be instructed as to prevention and protection from the disease or
 illness.
- 2. Employees shall report all unsafe conditions to a representative of the safety committee. MPE may annually appoint one employee per building (K-6, 7-12) to serve on the safety committee.

SECTION 8. ASSIGNMENT AND TRANSFER

The District will provide a copy of the Transfer Request form, (Appendix G) to all Employees by March 1. Employees who wish to transfer to a vacant or new position must return the form to the District Office prior to April 1.

The assignment of staff within the building is the responsibility of the building principal. Changes of teaching assignments will not be arbitrary and will be discussed with the Association and be approved by the Superintendent. Employees shall be notified no later than the end of the school year of any changes in their programs and schedules for the ensuing school year, including special assignments, except when unanticipated changes in staffing or program require a change.

Once staff assignments are made, any job openings shall be made public to other certificated staff within the District as soon as possible. Vacant and new positions may be filled by present employees who wish to transfer and are determined by the District to be the most qualified prior to anyone outside the District being hired. Each posting shall have clearly stated criteria and qualifications for the opening.

Appropriate professional development will be provided for any teacher being asked to teach in a different assignment.

Teachers asked to move to a different classroom or establish a new classroom will be granted one day at the in-service rate.

It is the intent of the district to provide the training necessary for all teachers to be prepared for their teaching assignments. A Plan of Success may be developed between the teacher, a representative from the association and the administration whenever a new teaching assignment has been confirmed.

All current bargaining unit members, excluding substitutes, shall be considered eligible for in-house transfer.

POSTING POSTIONS:

Certified staff will be notified by email of all vacant and new positions, including co-curricular contracts covered under this agreement. Positions shall be posted in and out of the District at the same time.

The District shall make every possible effort to fill vacancies with their present employees when there is a match with skills and qualification of present employees and those skills and qualifications required for the position before out-of district hiring can occur.

Any qualified District employee shall be granted an interview for positions opened for competition. Long-term substitutes shall be considered prior to external applicants being interviewed.

The District will make an effort to assign employees by the following guidelines: major field of preparation, minor field of preparation, and areas of previous experience: elementary K-6, middle school 5-8, high school academic experience/major-minor areas.

SECTION 9. JOB SHARING

Job sharing shall refer to two (2) employees sharing one (1) full-time position. The following conditions will prevail for all job share partners:

- a. Employees with continuing contracts who wish to job share must apply for a part-time leave of absence for the first year.
- b. Job sharing may be available to employees who have continuing contracts with the District and who have indicated in writing to the Superintendent by May 1 of their desire to job share for the following school year. The job share partner may be a current employee of the District, or may be hired as a new employee.
- c. In the event that either job share partner is unable to fulfill their portion of the contract the remaining job share partner will be required to work full-time until such time as a replacement can be hired, at the sole discretion of the District.
- d. Job sharing assignments will be filled by employees who have jointly agreed to work together.
- e. Responsibilities of an assignment by two (2) job sharers may be divided and/or allocated according to a plan designed by the job sharers and the building principal and the approval of the District. This may include, but is not limited to, early release days, staff meetings, conferences, and planning time when applicable.
- f. Teacher partners will agree that joint planning will occur whenever they have joint responsibility for the same students or programs.
- g. No teacher in the District will be involuntarily transferred in order to create a job share program.
- h. The Association recognizes that selection for positions under this section is the sole purview of the District and is not subject to review under the grievance provisions of Article IX.
- i. The District reserves the authority to determine the number of job sharing positions, if any, within the District.

ARTICLE IV - EVALUATION/PROBATION

SECTION 1. PURPOSE

The major premise underlying the development of the evaluative criteria contained herein is that the primary purpose for evaluation is to increase the opportunities for learning through the improvement of instruction/professional performance. Evaluation should be a positive, developmental, and continuous process. It is intended that students will be the chief beneficiaries when employees and support personnel are evaluated on the basis of the minimum criteria contained in this evaluation instrument.

- A. For evaluation to serve the purpose of improving performance, it is essential that standards exist and be known and understood by those to be evaluated, as well as those evaluating. The evaluation process should provide for the participation of the individual being evaluated, for substantive, constructive recommendations to the individual being assessed, and for necessary in-service or assistance required by the individual to improve or enhance his/her professional competency. An important assumption in evaluation is that people desire to change and grow in effectiveness as professionals.
- B. Under provisions of RCW 28A.405.100 evaluation will serve as a basis for the development of a written report, a copy of which shall be provided to the evaluee, and for the development of a suggested and reasonable program for improvement in instances where an individual's performance is judged unsatisfactory.
- C. The parties agree that the following evaluation system for all employees in the bargaining unit is to be implemented in a manner consistent with good faith and mutual respect, and, as defined in RCW 28A.405.110:
 - (1) An evaluation system must be meaningful, helpful, and objective;
 - (2) An evaluation system must encourage improvements in teaching skill, techniques, and abilities by identifying areas needing improvement;
 - (3) An evaluation system must provide a mechanism to make meaningful distinctions among teachers and to acknowledge, recognize, and encourage superior teaching performance; and
 - (4) An evaluation system must encourage respect in the evaluation process by the persons conducting the evaluations and the persons subject to the evaluations through recognizing the importance of objective

standards and minimizing subjectivity.

- D. Additionally, the parties agree that the evaluation process is one which will be implemented with collaboration between the evaluator and the bargaining unit member, as described in WAC 392-191A- 050:
 - (1) To acknowledge the critical importance of teacher quality in impacting student growth and support professional learning as the underpinning of the new evaluation system.
 - (2) To identify, in consultation with classroom teachers, principals, and assistant principals, particular areas in which the professional performance is distinguished, proficient, basic or unsatisfactory, and particular areas in which the classroom teacher, principal, or assistant principal needs to improve his/her performance.
 - (3) To assist classroom teachers who have identified areas needing improvement, in making those improvements.

SECTION 2. EVALUATOR QUALIFICATIONS:

All assigned evaluators shall receive training in the evaluation processes they have been assigned to conduct that are contained in this Agreement and related appendices. Upon request, the District shall provide the Association, within ten (10) days, the dates and a summary of the content of the most recent training that each evaluator has completed. No teacher shall be evaluated by an evaluator who has not received training in observation, evaluation, the appropriate forms for each process, and the instructional framework and rubrics contained in this Agreement and any relevant state requirements.

- A. General. Classroom teachers and support personnel shall be evaluated during each school year in accordance with the procedures and criteria set forth in this Article and statute. Each employee within fifteen (15) days of employment or within fifteen (15) days from the commencement of the school year, whichever is later, shall be given a copy of the evaluation criteria, procedures, and any relevant forms and information appropriate to the teacher's position and track in the evaluation cycle.
- B. Responsibility for Evaluation. Within each school the principal or administrative supervisory designee shall be responsible for the evaluation of employees assigned to that school. An employee assigned to two or more schools shall be evaluated in all schools by one designated evaluator. The administrative organization plan of the School District shall be used to determine lines of responsibility for any employee who is not regularly assigned to any school.
- C. No audio or video recording or transmission device may be used for electronically recording purposes without the written consent of the employee. Any permanent record made from any such approved device will become the personal property of the employee.

SECTION 3. APPLICABILITY FOR EVALUATION PROCESSES

The evaluation processes to be utilized for employees shall be as follows:

- 1. Classroom Teacher Evaluation Process (Article IV, Section 4)

 This employee group includes specifically those certificated staff with an assigned group of students for whom they provide academically focused instruction and hold one or more certificates as provided for under WAC 181-79A-140 (1) through (3) and (6) (a) through (e) and (g). The term "classroom teachers" does not include certificated staff who are defined in Section 3.2 below. In addition, employees who are substitute teachers and/or who are hired to replace certificated employees who have been granted sabbatical, regular, or other leave by the District pursuant to RCW 28A.405.900 shall not be considered classroom teachers subject to the Classroom Teacher evaluation process.
- 2. Non-Classroom Teacher Evaluation Process (Article IV, Section 5):
 This employee group includes Educational Staff Associates (e.g. Speech Language Pathologists, Psychologists, Counselors), and other bargaining unit members who do not meet the definition of "classroom teacher" in Section 3.1 above.

SECTION 4. CLASSROOM TEACHER EVALUATION PROCESS

This process applies to Classroom Teachers as defined in Section 3.1 above.

1. PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Prior to being evaluated under Article IV, each teacher shall receive professional development training to comprehend the framework and understand the evaluation process. All funding provided by the state and budgeted by the district specific to the purpose of professional development for evaluation shall be used for that purpose.

At the request of new employees, the District will provide up to three (3) hours of professional development prior to the implementation of evaluation activities under this section. If any employee would like a refresher course or feels the need for additional assistance with the evaluation process, the Association may discuss it with the District in Labor-Management.

2. DEFINITIONS, STATE CRITERIA, FRAMEWORK, AND SCORING

A. Definitions

- 1. Criteria shall mean one of the eight (8) state defined categories to be scored.
- 2. Component shall mean the sub-section of each criterion.
- 3. Evaluator shall mean a certificated administrator who has been trained in observation, evaluation and the use of the specific instructional framework and rubrics contained in this agreement and any relevant state or federal requirements. The evaluator shall assist the teacher by providing support and resources.
- 4. Artifacts shall mean a type of evidence in the form of any products generated, developed or used by a certificated teacher or identified by the evaluator. Artifacts should not be created specifically for the evaluation system, although tools or forms used in the evaluation process may be considered as artifacts.
- 5. Evidence shall mean observed practice, products, or results of a certificated classroom teacher's work that demonstrates knowledge and skills of the educator with respect to the four-level rating system.
- 6. Not Satisfactory, in the context of evaluation ratings triggering probation shall mean:
 - Level 1: Unsatisfactory Receiving a summative evaluation score of 1
 - Level 2: Basic If the classroom teacher is on a continuing contract with more than five years of teaching experience and if a summative evaluation score of 2 has been received two years in a row or two years within a consecutive three-year period.
- 7. Student Growth shall mean the change in student achievement between two points in time within the current school year. Student growth data means relevant multiple measures that can include classroom-based, school-based and school district-based and state-based tools. Assessments used to demonstrate growth must be appropriate, relevant, and may include both formative and summative measures.
- 8. Observe" or "observation" means the gathering of evidence made through classroom or worksite visits, or other visits, work samples, or conversations that allow for the gathering of evidence of the performance of assigned duties for the purpose of examining evidence over time against the instructional or leadership framework rubrics pursuant to this section.

B. State Evaluation Criteria:

The evaluation criteria in relation to which the teacher's performance is to be evaluated are those specified in RCW 28A.405.100 (2)(b):

- 1. Centering instruction on high expectations for student achievement,
- 2. Demonstrating effective teaching practices,
- 3. Recognizing individual student learning needs and developing strategies to address those needs,
- 4. Providing clear and intentional focus on subject matter content and curriculum,
- 5. Fostering and managing a safe, positive learning environment,
- 6. Using multiple data elements to modify instruction and improve student learning,
- 7. Communicating and collaborating with parents and the school community, and
- 8. Exhibiting collaborative and collegial practices focused on improving instructional practices and student learning.

C. Instructional Framework

Classroom teachers shall be evaluated using the Marzano Framework for Teaching as modified and approved by the Office of the Superintendent of Public Instruction (OSPI) as posted on the OSPI website. A summary of the instructional framework as adopted is included for informational purposes as Appendix C-1 (including critical attributes).

Upon mutual agreement the parties may select a different OSPI approved instructional framework.

D. Criterion Performance Scoring

- 1. A four-level rating system will be used. The summative performance ratings shall be as follows:
 - a. Level 1 Unsatisfactory
 - b. Level 2 Basic
 - c. Level 3 Proficient
 - d. Level 4 Distinguished

In the event state law amends/revises these ratings, the revised ratings shall be utilized by the District.

- 2. The final criterion score shall be determined by the Overall Rating Range as set forth in Appendix A-3 (Attached).
- 3. A teacher receiving a comprehensive summative evaluation shall receive one of the four summative performance ratings for each of the criteria in subsection D.1, above. A teacher receiving a focused evaluation shall receive one of the four summative performance ratings for the criterion selected from those in D.1, above (plus student growth rubrics from either criterion 3 or 6, if applicable). Whether the teacher is receiving a comprehensive summative evaluation or a focused evaluation, the evaluator must then assign a comprehensive summative evaluation performance rating, which shall be the teacher's comprehensive summative evaluation performance rating.

E. Summative Performance Rating

A classroom teacher shall receive a summative performance rating for each of the eight (8) state evaluation criteria. The overall summative score is determined by totaling the eight (8) criterion-level scores as follows:

- 1. 8-14—Unsatisfactory
- 2. 15-21—Basic
- 3. 22-28—Proficient
- 4. 29-32—Distinguished

F. Student Growth Score

- 1. Embedded in the instructional framework are five (5) components designated as student growth components. These components are embedded in criteria as SG 3.1, SG 3.2, SG 6.1, SG 6.2, and SG 8.1. Evaluators add up the raw score on these components and the employee is given a score of low, average or high based on the scores below:
 - 1. 5-12—Low
 - 2. 13-17—Average
 - 3. 18-20—High
- 2. Student growth data will be taken from multiple sources during the school year in which the evaluation is being conducted, and must be appropriate and relevant to the teacher's assignment. It will include teacher initiated formal and/or informal assessments of student progress. Student achievement that is not calibrated to show growth between two points in time in the same school year shall not be used to calculate a teacher's student growth score. Evaluators shall not use school-wide or District-wide test scores when assessing a teacher's achievement of student growth goals unless agreed upon by the teacher.
- 3. The evaluator's determination of proficiency level ratings must be based on multiple measures determined in collaboration with the teacher, that may include classroom-based, school-based, district-based and state-based tools.
- 4. Student growth data elements may include the teacher's performance as a member of a grade-level, subject matter, or other instructional team within a school when the use of this data is relevant and appropriate.

- 5. If a teacher receives a preliminary summative evaluation rating of 4 Distinguished and a Low student growth score, they must be automatically moved to the 3 Proficient level for their summative score. If a teacher receives a low student growth score on any of the five student growth components, it will trigger the student growth inquiry plan. Within in two (2) months of receiving the Low student growth score or at the beginning of the following school year, whichever is later, one or more of the following must be initiated by evaluator in collaboration with the teacher;
 - a. Examine student growth data in conjunction with other evidence including observation, artifacts, and other student and teacher information based on appropriate classroom, school, district, and state-based tools and practices; and/or
 - b. Examine extenuating circumstances which may include one or more of the following: goal setting process; content and expectations; student attendance; extent to which curriculum, standards, and assessments are aligned; and/or
 - c. Schedule monthly conferences focused on improving student growth to include one or more of the following topics: student growth goal revisions, refinement, and progress; best practices related to instructional areas in need of attention; best practices related to student growth data collection and interpretations; and/or
 - d. Create and implement a professional development plan to address student growth areas.
 - e. Additional options, as mutually determined by the teacher and evaluator.

3. PROCEDURAL COMPONENTS OF EVALUATION

A. Notification

The teacher will be notified within fifteen (15) days from the start of the school year, or the teacher's first day of work, whichever is later, of the evaluator and whether the teacher will be evaluated using a comprehensive or focused evaluation.

B. Student Growth Goal Setting:

By the last day of October, the teacher shall determine a student growth goal for Components SG-3.1, SG-6.1 and SG-8.1 on a Goal Setting form (Appendix C-2). The goal for SG-6.1 and SG-8.1 may be the same goal. Unless previously established, student growth goal-setting will be discussed at the pre-observation conference preceding the first required formal observation.

C. Artifacts and Evidence:

- 1. The evaluator and teacher will collect and share artifacts and evidence necessary to complete the evaluation.
- 2. The teacher may provide additional artifacts and evidence to aid in the assessment of the teacher's professional performance against the instructional framework rubric, especially for those criteria not observed in the classroom. The evidence provided by the teacher shall be given good faith consideration in the determination of the final evaluation criterion component scores. The teacher is encouraged to actively participate in the evaluation process through presentation of potential evidence of proficiency throughout the year. A teacher may, but shall not be required to, submit artifacts and evidence for completion of the evaluation.

D. Record-Keeping

The District shall adhere to the following:

- 1. A copy of the final evaluation report, teacher's written comments, if applicable, shall be included in the teacher's personnel file. Only relevant evidence or artifacts will be retained in the teacher's personnel file.
- 2. Teachers may submit artifacts and evidence in a variety of media.

E. Alternative Evaluator

A teacher may submit, by November 1st, a written request to the Superintendent, to be assigned an alternative evaluator. If the request is denied, the Superintendent shall put the reason(s) for such denial in writing within ten (10) days of the request.

4. COMPREHENSIVE EVALUATION PROCESS

A Comprehensive Evaluation will include evaluation of all eight state criteria. A teacher otherwise eligible for a focused evaluation must complete a comprehensive evaluation once every four years. Provisional teachers shall be evaluated using the comprehensive process during each year of their provisional status. Any teacher who received a comprehensive summative performance rating of 1-Unsatisfactory or 2-Basic in the previous school year shall be evaluated on the Comprehensive process during the ensuing school year.

A. 1st Pre-Observation Conference:

The pre-observation conference shall be held prior to the first formal observation. The teacher and evaluator will mutually agree when to conference. The purpose of the pre-observation conference is to establish and discuss the employee's goals, establish a date for the formal observation, and to discuss such matters as the professional activities to be observed, their content, objectives, strategies, and possible observable evidence to meet the scoring criteria.

B. 1st Formal Observation:

- 1. The first of at least two (2) formal required observations for each employee shall be conducted within the first ninety (90) school days of the school year. The first of the two (2) required formal observations shall be prearranged. The total annual observation time shall be for a minimum of sixty (60) minutes. An employee in the third year of provisional status as defined in RCW 28A.405.220 shall be observed at least three times in the performance of his or her duties and the total observation time for the school year shall be for a minimum of ninety (90) minutes. Any formal observation shall not be less than 30 minutes in length.
- 2. The observations will occur no later than five (5) days after the pre-observation conference unless the observation is delayed by the employee's absence.
- 3. Observations will not take place on late start days caused by inclement weather, the day before winter or spring break and on the day following an absence of the employee, unless otherwise agreed to by the employee.
- 4. Following each observation or series of observations, the evaluator shall conduct a feedback conference with the employee to be held within five (5) days following the observation unless otherwise mutually agreed to by the evaluator and teacher or unless it is delayed by the absence of either party.

C. 1st Feedback Conference

- 1. The purpose of the feedback conference is to review and bring clarity to the evaluator's and teacher's evidence related to the observation and to discuss the teacher's performance. The teacher shall be entitled to submit additional evidence of the teacher's professional performance that the teacher deemed was not observed in the classroom. Any additional evidence provided by the teacher shall be considered by the evaluator in determining the final evaluation score.
- 2. Within a maximum of three (3) days of the conclusion of the feedback conference, the evaluator will complete the observation report form (Appendix C-3), which both the evaluator and the employee will sign. The employee's signature does not signify agreement. The employee will be provided a copy of the signed form.
- 3. If there is an area of concern, the evaluator will identify the specific criteria components and provide written suggestions to address the concern.
- 4. The teacher may attach written comments to the observation report.

D. 2nd Formal Observation

- 1. The second required formal observation, or second and third in the case of a third year provisional teacher, will occur no sooner than four (4) weeks after the first formal observation, unless mutually agreed to by the teacher.
- 2. Observations will not take place on late start days caused by inclement weather, the day before winter or spring break, and on the day following an absence of the employee, unless otherwise agreed to by the employee.
- 3. Following each observation or series of observations, the evaluator shall conduct a feedback conference with the employee to be held within five (5) days following the observation unless otherwise mutually agreed to by the evaluator and teacher or unless it is delayed by the absence of either party.
- 4. The final required formal observation shall occur prior to May 1st.

E. 2nd Feedback Conference

- 1. The purpose of the feedback conference is to review and bring clarity to the evaluator's and teacher's evidence related to the observation and to discuss the teacher's performance. The teacher shall be entitled to submit additional evidence of the teacher's professional performance that the teacher deemed was not observed in the classroom. The evidence provided by the teacher shall be considered by the evaluator in determining the final evaluation score.
- 2. Within a maximum of three (3) days of the conclusion of the feedback conference, the evaluator will complete the observation report form (Appendix C-3), which both the evaluator and the employee will sign. The employee's signature does not signify agreement. The employee will be provided a copy of the signed form.
- 3. If there is an area of concern, the evaluator will identify the specific criteria components and provide written suggestions to address the concern.
- 4. The teacher may attach written comments to the observation report.

F. Additional Observations

In addition to the required formal observations, additional observations may be conducted for the purpose of gathering additional artifacts and evidence for the evaluation process. The evaluator shall document these observations on the Observation Form (Appendix C-3) and provide a copy to the employee within five (5) days of the observation. The employee shall be entitled to a post-observation conference with respect to such observations upon request. Such documentation shall be used to support and complete information gathered during the required formal observations.

G. Evaluation Conference/Evaluation Report

- 1. Following the completion of the required formal observations, the evaluator shall meet with the teacher to share the data to be used to formulate the final evaluation report and to provide the teacher with a reflection of his/her preliminary ratings for the teacher on all components and criteria being evaluated at least three (3) days prior to a summative evaluation conference. The summative evaluation conference shall be held no later than May 12th. The purposes of the summative conference is to discuss the following:
 - a. The evaluator's preliminary rating on all components and criteria/criterion; and
 - b. Any additional evidence and artifacts the teacher would like the evaluator to consider before making a final summative rating.
- 2. With the mutual agreement of the teacher and evaluator, this pre-summative rating conference may be consolidated with a post observation conference following the final required observation.
- 3. The final summative score, including the student growth score, must be determined by an analysis of evidence. This analysis will take a holistic assessment of the teacher's performance over the course of the year. The teacher has the right to provide additional evidence for each criterion to be scored. The evidence provided by the teacher shall be considered by the evaluator in determining the final evaluation score. All evidence, measures and observations used in developing the final summative evaluation score must be a product of the school year in which the evaluation is conducted, except as provided in subsection 8.D. below, in the case of probation extended into the following school year.
- 4. In the event that the evaluation report is not completed during the summative evaluation conference, the evaluator shall complete the Evaluation Form (Appendix A-2) and provide a copy to the employee within three (3) days. The final evaluation report and conference shall be completed by May 15.
- 5. Nothing prohibits an evaluator from evaluating all teachers as Distinguished-4 within a school year.
- 6. The teacher will sign two (2) copies of the Final Summative Evaluation Form (Appendix A-2). The teacher shall sign the observation and evaluation forms to indicate receipt. The signature of the teacher does not, however, necessarily imply that the employee agrees with its contents. The teacher may attach any written comments to the observations and to the final annual evaluation report as well.

5. FOCUSED EVALUATION

In the years when a comprehensive summative evaluation is not required, teachers who received a comprehensive summative evaluation performance rating of level 3 or above in the previous school year may choose to complete a focused evaluation. The employee's overall summative score becomes the focused summative evaluation score for any of the subsequent years following the comprehensive summative evaluation in which the certificated teacher is placed on a focused evaluation. Should a certificated teacher provide evidence of exemplary practice on the chosen focused criterion, a level 4 (Distinguished) score may be awarded by the evaluator.

The District and the Association agree that it is not desirable for a teacher to be placed on probation from a Focused Evaluation Process. Transfer from the focused to the comprehensive summative evaluation may be at the request of the teacher or at the direction of the teacher's evaluator. Should an evaluator determine that a teacher on a focused evaluation should be moved to a comprehensive evaluation for that school year, the teacher must be informed of this decision in writing at any time on or before December 15th, unless a later date is mutually agreed to by the evaluator and the teacher.

- A. The criterion area to be evaluated shall be proposed by the teacher prior to, or at the first pre- observation conference, plus professional growth activities specifically linked to the selected criteria. It must be approved by the evaluator and it may have been identified in the previous comprehensive summative evaluation as a criterion that may benefit from additional attention and professional growth.
- B. If the employee chooses criterion 1, 2, 4, 5, or 7, he/she must also complete the student growth components in criterion 3 or 6.
- C. Observations and conferences for the focused evaluation shall follow the process set forth in Section 4, Procedural Components of Evaluation, Comprehensive Evaluation Process, above.
- D. The score received on the selected criterion is the score assigned as the final summative score.
- E. A group of teachers may focus on the same evaluation criterion and share professional growth activities. This collaboration should be initiated by the teacher(s) and no individual shall be required to work on a shared goal.

SUPPORT FOR BASIC AND UNSATISFACTORY PERFORMANCE

- A. The Association will be notified, with the teacher's consent, if any teacher is judged below Proficient 3, within ten(10) school days of the final evaluation.
- B. When a teacher is judged below Proficient on the final summative evaluation score, the teacher will be coached and supported by his/her evaluator in seeking reasonable professional development opportunities.
- C. In such cases that a teacher with more than five (5) years of experience receives a summative evaluation score below Proficient, the teacher must be formally observed before October 15th the following year. If the 1st Formal Observation in that following year results in ongoing and specific performance concerns a written support plan of professional growth will be mutually developed by the evaluator, and teacher, and with teacher consent of the Association.

7. PROVISIONAL EMPLOYEES

- A. A second year Provisional teacher who receives a summative rating of 3-Proficient or 4-Distinguished may, at the discretion of the Superintendent, be granted continuing contract status for the subsequent school year.
- B. When there is concern about the progress of a provisional employee as documented on an observation report form, the evaluator and employee shall schedule a meeting with an Association representative. The meeting will to occur within five (5) days of the post-observation conference, unless a longer time frame is mutually agreed to, to review the expectations for the employee's current position. At that time a reasonable plan for improvement will be developed whereby the employee will be assisted in improving his/her performance to an acceptable level.

8. PROBATION

At any time after October 15, a non-provisional classroom teacher whose work is judged not satisfactory based on the scoring criteria shall be placed on probation and notified in writing of the specific areas of deficiencies and provided a written reasonable plan of improvement.

- A. The following comprehensive summative evaluation performance ratings mean a classroom teacher's work is judged not satisfactory:
 - 1. Level 1 Unsatisfactory; or
 - 2. Level 2 Basic if the teacher is a continuing contract employee under RCW 28A.405.210 with more than five (5) years of teaching experience and if the Level 2 comprehensive summative evaluation performance rating has been received for two (2) consecutive years for two (2) years within a consecutive three (3) year time period.
- B. Teachers on continuing contracts who have been assigned to teach outside of their endorsements shall not be subject to nonrenewal or probation based on evaluations of their teaching effectiveness in the out-of-endorsement assignments in accordance with WAC 181-82-110.

- C. In the event that an evaluator determines that the performance of a teacher under his/her supervision merits probation, the evaluator shall report the same in writing to the Superintendent. The report shall include the following:
 - 1. The evaluation report prepared pursuant to the provisions of Article IV Section 4.G above, and,
 - 2. A recommended specific and reasonable program designed to assist the teacher in improving his or her performance.
- D. The Superintendent shall place the teacher in a probationary status for a period of sixty (60) school days, any time after October 15. The probationary period may be extended into the following school year if the teacher has more than five (5) years of teaching experience and the final summative rating as of May 15th is Unsatisfactory -1. At this time, the Association and the teacher shall be given notice of action of the Superintendent which notice shall contain the following information:
 - 1. Specific areas of performance deficiencies identified from the instructional framework;
 - 2. A suggested specific and reasonable plan for improvement, including a statement indicating areas of assistance and resources to be provided to the employee by the District.
 - 3. A statement indicating the duration of the probationary period and that the purpose of the probationary period is to give the teacher the opportunity to demonstrate improvement in his/her area or areas of deficiency.
- E. The plan for improvement will include the specific evaluative criteria which must be met and the measures and benchmarks, which will be used to determine the teacher's success or failure. The plan will include a system for periodic feedback during the term of probation.
- F. Evaluation During the Probationary Period
 - 1. At or about the time of the delivery of a probationary letter, the evaluator shall hold a personal conference with the probationary teacher to discuss performance deficiencies and the remedial measures to be taken.
 - 2. Once the areas of deficiency and criteria for improvement have been determined, they may not be changed.
 - 3. During the probationary period the evaluator shall meet with the probationary teacher at least twice a month to supervise and make a written evaluation of the progress, if any, made by the teacher. The Observation Form (Appendix A-2) shall be used to document these meetings/observation.
 - 4. The evaluator may authorize one additional certificated administrator to evaluate the teacher and to aid the teacher in improving his or her areas of deficiency. Should the evaluator not authorize such additional evaluator, the teacher may request that an additional certificated evaluator become part of the probationary process, and this request must be implemented by including an experienced additional evaluator assigned by ESD171 and jointly selected by the District and the Association from a list of evaluation specialists compiled by ESD171. Any such request for an additional evaluator shall be made by the teacher in writing on or before the 5th day of the probationary period.
- G. A teacher who is on a plan of improvement must be removed from probation if he/she has demonstrated improvement to the satisfaction of the evaluator in those areas specifically detailed in his or her initial notice of deficiency. A teacher must be removed from probation if a teacher with five(5) or fewer years of experience scores at Basic (2) or above or a teacher of more than five (5) years of experience scores at Proficient (3) or above. A written notice will be provided to the teacher at the time this decision is made.
- H. Evaluator's Post-Probation Report
 - Unless the probationary teacher has previously been removed from probation, the evaluator shall submit a written report to the Superintendent at the end of the probationary period which report shall identify whether the performance of the probationary teacher has improved and which shall set forth one (1) of the following recommendations for further action:
 - 1. That the teacher has demonstrated sufficient improvement in the stated areas of deficiency to justify the removal of the probationary status; or
 - 2. That the teacher has demonstrated sufficient improvement in the stated areas of deficiency to justify the removal of the probationary status if accompanied by a letter identifying areas where further improvement is required; or
 - 3. That the teacher has not demonstrated sufficient improvement in the stated areas of deficiency and action should be taken to non-renew the employment contract of the teacher.

I. Action by the Superintendent:

- 1. Following a review of the report submitted pursuant to paragraph H, above, the Superintendent shall determine which of the alternative courses of action is proper and shall take appropriate action to implement such determination.
- 2. Lack of necessary improvement during the established probationary period, as specifically documented in writing with notification to the probationer constitutes grounds for a finding of probable cause under RCW 28A.405.300 or 28A.405.210.
- 3. The probationary period may be extended into the following school year if the teacher has more than five (5) years of teaching experience and the final summative rating as of May 15th is unsatisfactory-1.
- J. The following records of probation for an unsatisfactory evaluation will be maintained in the teacher's file for two (2) years and will, if no further unsatisfactory evaluation is made in the interim, be removed:
 - 1. Notice of Probation
 - 2. Notice of Removal from Probation and/or Notice of Superintendent Action

9. NON-RENEWAL (DISCHARGE)

When a continuing contract teacher with five (5) or more years of experience receives a comprehensive summative evaluation rating of 1 – Unsatisfactory for two (2) consecutive years, after completing probation the first year, the District shall, within ten (10) days of the completion of the Final Evaluation Conference or May 15th, whichever occurs first, implement the teacher notification of non-renewal (discharge) as provided in RCW 28A.405.300.

10. PROBABLE CAUSE

The teacher who is, at any time, issued a written notice of probable cause for non-renewal or discharge by the Superintendent pursuant to this Article shall have ten (10) calendar days following receipt of said notice to file any notice of appeal as provided by statute.

11. EVALUATION RESULTS

A. Evaluation results shall be used:

- 1. To acknowledge, recognize, and encourage excellence in professional performance.
- 2. To document the level of performance by a teacher of his/her assigned duties.
- 3. To identify specific areas in which the teacher may need improvement according to the criteria included on the evaluation instrument.
- 4. To document performance by a teacher judged unsatisfactory based on the District evaluation criteria.

B. Evaluation results shall not be:

- 1. Shared or published with any teacher identifying information, unless required to do so under applicable case law.
- 2. Shared or published without notification to the individual and Association.
- 3. Used to determine any type of base or additional compensation.
- 4. Used as a form of progressive discipline.

SECTION 5. NON-CLASSROOM TEACHER EVALUATION PROCESS

1. EVALUATION PROCEDURE

- A. Within each school (K-6, 7-12), the principal, or an administrative designee from outside the MPE bargaining unit, shall be responsible for the evaluation of employees assigned to the building
- B. During each school year non-classroom teachers shall meet with their evaluator for the purposes of evaluation at least twice to discuss the performance of their assigned duties. Total meeting time for each school year shall be not less than sixty (60) minutes. Third year provisional employees shall be meet at least three times for a total of not less than ninety (90) minutes. Following each meeting, or series of meetings, the principal or other evaluator shall promptly document the results in writing and shall provide the employee with a copy thereof within three (3) days after such report is prepared.
- C. After an employee has had four (4) years of satisfactory evaluation under the long form, the short form shall be used. The short form of evaluation shall include either a thirty (30) minute observation during the school year with a written summary or a final annual written evaluation based on at least two (2) observation periods during the school year totaling at least sixty (60) minutes without a written summary of such observations

being prepared. The long form evaluation shall be followed at least once every three (3) years. If requested by an employee or evaluator, or if indicated by a "needs improvement" in an evaluated area, the long form shall be used. The short form evaluation process may not be used as a basis for determining that an employee's work is unsatisfactory, nor as probable cause for the non-renewal of an employee's contract under RCW 28A.405.210.

- D. No mechanical or electronic device shall be used in any classroom to listen or record the procedures of any class without the prior permission of the employee.
- E. New employees shall be observed at least once for a minimum total observation time of thirty (30) minutes during the first ninety (90) calendar days of their employment period.
- F. Prior to the end of each school year, a final evaluation report shall be made for each employee. The report shall be discussed with the employee, and a copy placed in the employee's file.

2. PROBATIONARY PROCEDURE – (This process applies to non-classroom teachers)

- A. Every non-provisional employee whose work is judged unsatisfactory based on District evaluations shall be notified in writing on or before February 1 of each year stating specific areas of deficiencies along with a suggested specific and reasonable program for improvement.
- B. A probationary period of sixty (60) school days shall be established beginning after October 15th and not later than February 1 and ending no later than May 1. The establishment of a probationary period shall not be deemed to adversely affect the contract status of an employee within the meaning of RCW 28A.405.300, as now or hereafter amended. Days may be added if deemed necessary to complete a program for improvement and evaluate the probationer's performance as long as the probationary period is concluded before May 15th of the same school year.
- C. The purpose of the probationary period is to give the employee opportunity to demonstrate improvements in his/her areas of deficiency.
- D. In carrying out the probation procedure, the following steps shall be followed:
 - **STEP 1.** The principal shall meet with the employee in an attempt to resolve matters relating to performance before probation is recommended. The employee shall have an opportunity to have an Association representative in attendance at the conference.
 - **STEP 2.** If an employee is being considered for probation, the recommendation to the Superintendent for probationary status must be made on or before January 20.
 - STEP 3. The Superintendent, or designee, shall review the principal's or immediate supervisor's recommendation for probation.
 - **STEP 4.** The decision to place an employee on probation is to be determined by the Superintendent. If an employee is placed on probation, the actual letter of probation from the Superintendent to the employee must include a specific and reasonable program for improvement as follows:
 - 1. A definition of the problem in terms of the adopted criteria:
 - 2. A set of expectations delineating what levels of performance would constitute acceptable performance in the problem areas defined;
 - 3. A specific and reasonable program for remediation which spells out courses of action and expectations so the employee involved can reach an acceptable level of performance; and
 - 4. A plan for assistance by the principal or immediate supervisor which spells out courses of action whereby the employee will be assisted, counseled, and tutored in improving the level of performance to an acceptable level.
- E. During the probationary period the principal shall meet with the probationary employee at least twice monthly to supervise and make a written evaluation of the progress, if any, made by the employee. The documentation of evaluation reports during the probationary period shall be confined to the areas of prescribed remediation.

3. POST PROBATION

If by May 1, and after all the steps and processes of the probationary period have been followed, the employee does not demonstrate the acceptable level of performance as originally stated in the probationary recommendation, the actual letter of probation and subsequent supportive evaluation documentation, then that employee may be eligible for non-renewal of contract.

4. ACTION OF THE SUPERINTENDENT

In any event, the Superintendent shall notify the employee in writing no later than May 15 of the status of his/her contract renewal.

ARTICLE V - LAYOFF AND RECALL

SECTION 1. DEFINITION OF LAYOFF

- A. Not later than May 15, or if the omnibus appropriations act has not passed the legislature by May 15, then no later than June 1, the Board shall determine whether the financial resources of the District will be adequate to permit the District to maintain its educational programs and services substantially at the same level for the following school year. The Board shall adopt a modified educational program to implement such modified programs and those certificated employees, if any, whose contract will not be renewed. All budget information will be made available to the Association within twenty (20) days of determination.
- B. In the event the Board determines that probable cause for reduction in force exists based on a lack of sufficient funds or a loss of levy election, the non-renewed certificated staff members shall receive a notice of probable cause pursuant to RCW 28A.405.300 or 28A.405.210.

SECTION 2. PROGRAMS AND SERVICES

- A. If education programs and services of the District are to be modified because of a lack of financial resources, the following guidelines shall be taken into consideration in determining the programs and services to be retained, modified or eliminated:
 - 1. High priority will be given to maintaining lowest possible pupil-teacher ratios in the classrooms.
 - 2. Where revenues are categorical and depend on actual expenditures rather than budget amount, every effort will be made to maintain these programs, where reasonable, to the limit of their categorical support; e.g., vocational education, federally support programs, lunchroom, etc.
 - 3. High school course offerings which are required for graduation will be retained.
- B. In its efforts to retain as much of the basic educational programs as the District's financial resources will permit, the Board shall make reductions in expenditures, where reasonable and not categorically funded, in capital outlay, supplies and materials, contractual services, and travel.
- C. The Association may make recommendations to the Board about possible program and service modifications.

SECTION 3. EMPLOYEE RETENTION

- A. In the event there is modification of programs and services for financial reasons, the number of employees which is required to implement the modified educational programs and services shall be determined as provided in this Article.
- B. In an effort to eliminate the necessity of non-renewal or involuntary terminations, every reasonable effort shall be made to ascertain the number of bargaining unit positions which will be open for the following year by reason of normal attrition as outlined below. Such vacancies shall not be replaced except as indicated in 3 below.
 - 1. Voluntary employee retirements.
 - 2. Normal employee resignations.
 - 3. Vacant positions will be filled by transferring currently employed employees within the District, unless by reason of certification, training or experience no qualified person is available. Current employees who can attain necessary certification, training or experience by the beginning of the next school year shall be retained.

SECTION 4. LAYOFF PROCEDURE

A. To insure that the employee recommended for retention will be qualified to implement the education program determined by the Board, all employees must possess such valid Washington State certificate(s) as may be required for the position(s) under consideration. In addition, the following categories are established to allow for the least disruption of the ongoing program and to provide for the least deviation from the present assignment of personnel:

Employees will be grouped District-wide in separate categories as follows:

Elementary - Grades K through 6

Secondary - Grades 7 through 12

Specialties - Specialists in Physical Education, Music, Special Education, Counseling, Career Technical Education, Fine Arts, etc.

- B. Each employee will, in accordance with the criteria set forth in paragraph A above, be considered for retention in the category of specialty held at the time of the implementation of these procedures, and in addition, in such additional categories or specialties as any such employee may designate in writing to the Superintendent, provided that, in order to qualify for consideration in any such category or specialty, the employee:
 - 1. Must have had a minimum of one (1) year's full-time professional experience in each such additional category or specialty; or
 - 2. Must have the equivalent of a college major (45 quarter hours or 30 semester hours) or minor (15 quarter hours or 10 semester hours) in each such additional category or specialty.

SECTION 5. SENIORITY

- A. Employees will be assigned into available positions within each category or specialty on the basis of seniority (years of experience in Mansfield School District) as recorded in the Business Office. The District shall issue a seniority list no later than February 15, which shall also list the employees' years of experience in the District. Employees shall have until March 15 to notify the District of, and provide documentation for, any objections to their placement on the seniority listing. After consultation with the Association, the District shall issue to each employee on District email a finalized list by April 15, after which no further objections to the seniority list shall be entertained. Within each category or specialty, the senior employee(s) shall be recommended for retention if the category or specialty is not eliminated. Tie breakers shall be total credits in category or specialty and then date of hire and then years of certificated experience in State of Washington.
- B. If ties still exist, employees will be offered the job share option defined above.

SECTION 6. EMPLOYMENT POOL

- A. All personnel who are not recommended for retention in accordance with these administrative procedures shall be non-renewed and placed in an employment pool for 2 contract years, for possible reemployment. Senior employment pool employees will be given the opportunity to fill open positions for which they are qualified under Section 4.
- B. Any vacancies which occur after shifting and placement of remaining employees, including those created by a transfer, will be offered to current employees for a period of seven (7) calendar days. Notice will be by District email to all current employees. If the vacant position is not filled by a current employee, it will be offered, by seniority ranking, to the next "qualified" employee in the RIF Employment Pool.
- C. When a vacancy occurs for which any employees in the employment pool qualifies, notification from the Board or designee to such employee shall be by certified or registered mail, or personal contact by the Superintendent. Such employees shall have seven (7) calendar days from the receipt of the letter or from the date of personal contact to accept the position by certified or registered mail or by personal contact. It shall be the obligation of the employee in the employment pool to keep the Superintendent notified as to where he/she can be reached so that contacting the employee shall not take more than seven (7) calendar days. If the employee does not fulfill this obligation, the District is under no obligation to carry out the provisions of contacting them.
- D. If any employee in the employment pool fails to accept a position for which he/she is eligible pursuant to this policy, such employee may be rotated to the bottom of the employment pool list. If any employee rejects three employment opportunities as a member of the employment pool, he/she will be removed from the employment pool. Employees in the employment pool will remain in the pool from May 1, for 28 months.

SECTION 7. RECALL BENEFITS

- A. Employees returning from the employment pool to accept an open or vacant position shall return to their previous contractual status.
- B. The district may utilize employees in the employment pool as substitutes on a first priority basis.

ARTICLE VI - INSTRUCTION

SECTION 1. PREPARATION TIME

- A. All full-time middle/high school employees shall have at least fifty (50) minutes of preparation time during each instructional school day.
- B. All full-time elementary employees shall have at least fifty (50) minutes of uninterrupted preparation time during each instructional school day.
- C. Preparation periods will be exclusive of the thirty (30) minutes before and after school.
- D. Preparation time is to be used to prepare for professional and non-professional school related responsibilities as determined by the teacher.
- E. Loss of preparation period shall be compensated at per diem rate per lost period as recorded on timesheet.
 - 1. Class coverage.
 - 2. Additional instructional period including independent study assigned by administration.
 - 3. Behavioral issues when assigned by administration.

SECTION 2. WORK LOAD (CLASS SIZE)

- A. Beginning with the 2018-19 school year, when classrooms contain the following number of students the district will initiate possible overcrowding conversations regarding solutions:
 - 1. P-K Classroom 18
 - 2. 1st-2nd Classroom 18
 - 3. 3rd-4th Classroom 20
 - 4. 5th-6th Classroom 20
 - 5. 7th-12th Classroom 20
 - 6. Elementary PE = maximum of 20 students in any single section.
 - 7. Elementary Library = maximum 20 students per period
 - 8. Elementary Art = maximum 20 students per period
 - 9. Secondary Physical Education = maximum of 20 students per class period.
 - 10. Secondary Music = 20 maximum per instructional period.
 - 11. Secondary Art = 20 maximum per instructional period.
 - 12. Secondary Lab courses = 20 maximum per instructional period
 - 13. Special Education teacher case load = 20 maximum

The District shall make every effort to provide additional staff, supplies, textbooks, instructional equipment and student desks as recommended by the principal after consultation with the employee.

- B. When possible based on funding level and revenue requirements from the state a para educator would be placed in any grade level combination classroom.
- C. Middle School/High School = Each teacher will only be required to formulate one lesson plan each instructional period taught, provided that teachers will be expected to differentiate for individual student differences within those lesson plans. Student Independent Study may only be assigned upon the agreement of the teacher.

SECTION 3. STUDENT DISCIPLINE

Discipline shall be enforced fairly and consistently regardless of race, creed, sex, or status. Such discipline shall be consistent with applicable federal and state laws.

The Board and Superintendent shall support and uphold employees in their reasonable and professional efforts to maintain discipline in the District under the provisions of WAC 392-400-235.

Dangerous Students: The District shall, when reasonable, prudent, feasible, and legal, inform affected employees of any student who evidences behaviors which could present a health or safety problem to the employee or other students. When possible, strategies for managing such students, as well as available resources and assistance will be discussed prior to placement of such students.

In an emergency a student may be sent to the principal or designated school authority if the student poses an immediate and continuing danger as authorized by law. This removal will continue until a meeting is held between the affected employee(s) and the principal or designated school authority determines that the threat of danger ceases to exist.

SECTION 4. ACADEMIC FREEDOM

The District believes that controversial issues are a part of the District's instructional program when related to subject matter in a given grade level or specific curricular field. Employees will use professional judgment in determining the appropriateness of the issue to the curriculum and the maturity of the students. Questionable matters shall be referred to the principal for decision.

In the presentation of all controversial issues, every effort will be made to affect a balance of biases, divergent points of view, and opportunity for exploration by the students into all sides of the issue.

In discussing controversial issues, the employee will encourage students to express their own views, assuring that it be done in a manner that gives due respect to one another's rights and opinions. When discussing controversial issues, the employee will respect positions other than his/her own. Students will be encouraged, after class discussions and independent inquiry, to reach their own conclusions regarding controversial issues.

SECTION 5. EMPLOYEE FACILITIES

Each building may have the following facilities and equipment for use by employees in buildings to which they are assigned:

- 1. Adequate space in each classroom for storage of instructional supplies and materials.
- 2. A work area with adequate square footage to provide for a safe learning environment and containing adequate equipment and supplies to aid in preparation of instructional materials.
- 3. A serviceable desk, chair, and filing cabinet.
- 4. In order to provide accessibility to the facilities, each employee shall be provided with keys to permit them to work after regular school hours. Key assignments will be recorded with the principal.
- 5. An adequate part of the parking lot may be designated as faculty parking.

ARTICLE VII - LEAVES

SECTION 1. GENERAL LEAVE

- A. Employees returning from extended leaves shall be reassigned to a position similar to their previous assignment and/or to an assignment commensurate with training or previous teaching experience.
- B. Sick leave shall not be used for any leave unless specifically stated otherwise.
- C. All leaves shall be with pay unless specifically stated otherwise.
- D. No salary increments shall be earned during leave of absence except for reasons required by the state for salary purposes, i.e., experience, education, and/or long term military leave.
- E. Employees on unpaid leave of absences may retain his/her insurance coverage by remitting the required monthly premium to the District if the insurance carrier permits.

SECTION 2. SICK LEAVE

- A. At the beginning of each school year each employee shall be credited with an advanced sick leave allowance of twelve (12) days full pay to be used for absence caused by illness, injury, poor health, maternity, quarantine, or other disability. Each employee's portion of unused sick leave allowance shall accumulate from year to year according to statute.
 - 1. Absence due to injury incurred in the course of the employee's employment shall be with full pay charged against workman's compensation with any balance taken out of sick leave on a pro-rated basis.
 - 2. Annually the District will provide each employee with an accounting of his/her accumulated sick leave and all transactions concerning his/her sick leave days within that time period.
 - 3. Upon return to employment with the District, any former employee shall be credited with the balance of unused sick leave accumulated at the time of termination of his/her employment with the District and in compliance with RCW 28A.400.300.

- 4. Leave sharing will be available where employees may donate excess sick leave for use by a District staff member who is suffering from, or has an immediate relative or household member suffering from, an extraordinary or severe illness, injury, impairment or physical or mental condition. Such a program is intended to extend leave benefits to a staff member who otherwise would have to take leave without pay or terminate his/her employment with the District. Shared leave will be purely voluntary. Employees will not be individually asked to donate sick leave; nor shall any means be used to apply pressure to employees to donate sick leave. No list will be made of those individuals who have or haven't donated, or those that are eligible to donate. The Superintendent will administer the leave sharing plan in a manner consistent with state law and District policy 5406.
- 5. An employee who has exhausted accumulated sick leave and who is unable to perform the duties because of personal illness, or disability may be granted an extended leave of absence without pay. An Employee who has been granted leave under this provision may return to service during the period of the leave after giving ten (10) days written notice to the Superintendent, and with written permission of his/her personal physician.
- 6. Medical appointments may be charged against sick leave days.
- 7. Upon request, family illness leave with pay may be granted when necessary for a serious illness in the employee's immediate family. Immediate family shall be understood to spouse, parent, child, grandchild, grandparent, sibling, niece, nephew, aunt or uncle, or those of the employee's spouse, or a person living in the same household as the employee. The Superintendent, at his/her discretion, may request such verification of family illness as he/she deems advisable. Such leave shall be taken from accumulated sick leave.

SECTION 3. SICK LEAVE CASHOUT

Sick leave cash-out procedures shall be in accordance with the law:

- A. In January of the year following any year in which a minimum of sixty (60) days of leave for illness or injury is accrued, and each January thereafter, any eligible employee may exercise an option to receive remuneration for unused leave for illness or injury accumulated in the previous year at a rate equal to one (1) day's monetary compensation of the employee for each four (4) full days of accrued leave for illness or injury in excess of sixty (60) days. Leave for illness or injury for which compensation has been received shall be deducted from accrued leave for illness or injury at the rate of four (4) days for every one (1) day's monetary compensation: PROVIDED, that no employee may receive compensation under this section for any portion of leave for illness or injury accumulated at a rate in excess of one (1) day per month.
- B. At the time of separation from District employment due to retirement or death, an eligible employee or the employee's estate shall receive remuneration at a rate equal to one (1) day's current monetary compensation of the employee for each four (4) full days accrued leave for illness or injury.

SECTION 4. MATERNITY/PATERNITY/ADOPTION LEAVE

Maternity/Paternity/Adoption leave shall be allowed employees for the purpose of childbirth/adoption provided that:

The employee notifies the District, when appropriate and possible, by written notice at least thirty (30) days prior to the commencement of the leave, which notice shall state the expected date of return to employment.

In compliance with the Family Medical Leave Act, as hereafter amended, leave shall be granted at the option of the employee. Additional leave days shall be granted if advised by the employee's personal physician. All such leave shall be under sick leave.

SECTION 5. BEREAVEMENT LEAVE

The District shall grant employees up to five (5) days with pay per occurrence for death in the immediate family of the employee, as defined below. The District shall grant employees one (1) day of bereavement leave with pay in the event of the death of friends, students or colleagues of the employee. Additional bereavement shall be granted as emergency leave.

Immediate family shall mean spouse, parent, child, sibling (including in-laws), grandchild, grandparent, niece, nephew, aunt, uncle or those of the employee's spouse, any person living in the same household as the employee or any person who is a dependent of the employee. Additional Bereavement leave may be granted at the discretion of the superintendent.

SECTION 6. JURY DUTY/SUBPOENA LEAVE

Leaves of absence with compensation shall be granted for jury duty. Any compensation received for jury duty performed on contracted days shall be relinquished to the District. The employee shall immediately notify the District when notification to serve on jury duty is received. When an employee is not actively serving on jury duty, that employee must return to his/her contracted duties. Leaves of absence with compensation shall be granted for subpoenaed employees. Any compensation received for serving as subpoenaed on contracted days shall be relinquished to the District. The employee shall immediately notify the District when a subpoena has been received. When an employee is not actively serving as subpoenaed, that employee must return to his/her contracted duties. In the event an employee is subpoenaed to appear as a witness averse to the District, such leave shall be without pay and any compensation received from non-District sources shall not be relinquished.

SECTION 7. MILITARY LEAVE

An employee who is ordered or who volunteers (because of compulsory duty) for active duty in the armed services of the United States will be granted leave without pay to a maximum of three (3) years. Following release from military service, the employee will be reinstated to employment status no later than the beginning of the next school year, or sooner if an appropriate vacancy exists. Full experience credit for leave of absence while in military service will be granted for salary placement purposes. Military leave for National Guard Duty will comply with all the requirements of RCW 38.40.060.

SECTION 8. PROFESSIONAL IMPROVEMENT LEAVE

Such leave may be granted by the District upon prior written notice as to the location and nature of the program to be attended and rationale for wishing to attend. If approved, the District will pay the cost of a qualified substitute; however, the actual expense for attendance shall be reimbursed as prescribed by District policy.

SECTION 9. PERSONAL LEAVE

The District will allow each employee two (2) days of personal leave, it is preferred requests for use of such leave be in writing and submitted one (1) week in advance so substitute can be obtained.

In case of a family emergency and the employee has exhausted their personal leave, the Superintendent, at his discretion may waive the one (1) week provision and allow additional days. Emergency leave may be taken by an employee due to a problem that has been suddenly precipitated or is unplanned or where preplanning could not relieve the necessity for the employee's absence. Such leave shall be taken from sick leave.

It is the intent that this leave shall be used for personal or family business

An employee can accrue unused personal leave days up to 5 days or cash out current year unused personal leave days (2) at the teacher's full per diem salary. Such payment shall be made in the July pay check.

SECTION 10. OTHER LEAVE

An employee may request a leave of absence without pay for a period of up to one (1) year by written request submitted to the Superintendent. The Superintendent shall consider the needs of the District in considering recommendation to the Board.

This leave may be used for but not limited to study, travel, work in a professionally related field, recuperation, or child rearing.

This leave may be used also to work in another school District where the experience would enhance the employee's value to the District, i.e., exchange teacher, college or university experience, artist-in-residence, or any program situation approved by the board.

Requests for leaves for an ensuing academic years shall be submitted to the Superintendent by April 1 the year prior to the leave. Requests for leave may be submitted for leaves where the April 1 deadline is not possible, provided, the said request shall be acted on by the Superintendent on a case-by-case basis.

ARTICLE VIII - FISCAL

SECTION 1. WORK DAY

- A. The total length of the work day shall not exceed seven hours and forty minutes, 7hrs 40 min for all employees, including a minimum of thirty (30) minutes duty-free lunch period.
- B. Faculty meetings are essential to the operation of a school and will be held at the discretion of the principal during the workday, except for emergencies. Such scheduling should be done on a cooperative basis between the principal and staff.
- C. The intent of the 30 minutes of time before and after school is for teachers to be available to meet with students and parents unless a previously scheduled meeting is taking place. Parents are encouraged to contact teachers and set up appointments ahead of time.

SECTION 2. NON-PROFESSIONAL DUTIES

Recognizing non-teaching duties such as supervision of classroom detention and bus loading are essential to a school operation, assignments in these areas may be assigned. Emergency situations may exist and emergency assignments may be made by the principal.

SECTION 3. EMPLOYEE WORK YEAR

The work year covered by this Agreement consists of one hundred eighty (180) contracted workdays. Any required additional days shall be compensated at 180th full per diem of the employee's salary. Any loss of workdays other than those covered by leave provisions shall result in pay reductions at the rate of 180th of contracted salary unless association requests the Board of Directors waiver of pay reduction.

A representative(s) chosen by the Association shall cooperatively formulate a calendar consisting one hundred eighty (180) days (or that number provided for by the legislature) to be presented for consideration by the Board of Directors by May 1.

SECTION 4. PER DIEM DAYS

Starting with the 2018-19 school year, two (2) days before school starts shall be a required work days and shall be paid full per diem of the employee's contracted daily rate of pay on a supplemental contract. The first day shall be district directed and the second day shall be used by employees in preparation for the work year. Both per diem days are contingent on continuing passage of the levy. In the event of a double levy failure, it will be suspended until successful passage of the levy and the first levy collection thereafter, at which point it will be restored.

A. Any additional optional day shall be paid on a supplemental contract and shall be used for in-service at the direction of the District.

SECTION 5. EVALUATION OF CLASSIFIED STAFF

Members of MPE will not be required to evaluate classified employees.

SECTION 6. PAYMENT PROVISIONS

All employees shall be paid in twelve (12) monthly installments with direct deposit on or about the last business day of the month.

SECTION 7. CREDITS TOWARD PLACEMENT ON SALARY SCHEDULE

The salary schedule used by District shall be the same as attached in Appendix A. No employee covered by the terms of this Agreement shall receive credit for courses taken (either in the past, present or future) towards placement on the salary schedule unless such courses are recognized by the State of Washington. Ten (10) approved clock hours equal one (1) college credit.

SECTION 8. COMPLIANCE AND SALARY SCHEDULE INCREASE

The base of the salary schedule shall be increased to the maximum allowable by the state. The salary schedule shall reflect one hundred eighty (180) days. All required days beyond one hundred eighty (180) shall be compensated at 1/180th full per diem of the employee's contracted rate of pay. Experience and educational increments earned are to be paid starting on the September paycheck.

SECTION 9. MEDICAL, DENTAL AND VISION INSURANCE

The District shall provide insurance benefits for each full-time and half-time or more employee on an FTE basis. The District shall pay the full state allowable premium on an FTE basis for insurance, which will form an insurance pool. Each employee shall declare his/her insurance plan by November 10 of each year. Pool monies left after declarations shall be distributed on an equal basis towards the excess premium costs. Any excess premium costs not covered by the pool shall be paid by the employee.

SECTION 10. TRAVEL

Employees traveling on school business shall utilize a school vehicle unless a scheduling conflict exists. Providing a conflict exists, employees may utilize their private vehicles and be reimbursed at the rate set by Board policy. Requests for school vehicles or use of private vehicles shall be made at least five (5) days prior to trip date(s).

SECTION 11. SPECIAL EDUCATION

If the special education teacher is assigned the director responsibilities, they will receive a \$1000 supplement contract.

ARTICLE IX - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

SECTION 1. DEFINITIONS

A claim by an employee, a group of employees, or the Association that there has been a violation, misinterpretation or misapplication of any provision of this Agreement to the detriment of the claimant, or by the Association where several employees are affected, may be processed as a grievance as hereinafter provided.

SECTION 2. PURPOSE

The purpose of this procedure is to secure, at the lowest possible administrative level, equitable solutions to the problems which may from time to time arise affecting the welfare or working conditions of employees. Both parties agree that proceedings shall be kept informal and confidential.

SECTION 3. PROCEDURES

- A. In the event that a grievant believes there is a basis for a grievance, the grievant may first discuss the alleged grievance with his/her principal or other appropriate supervisor either personally or accompanied by his/her Association representative.
- B. Any employee may present his/her grievance to the District and have such grievance adjusted without the intervention of the Association, as long as the Association has been given an opportunity to be present at that adjustment and to make its views known, and as long as the adjustment is not inconsistent with the terms of this Agreement.
- C. If the grievance is not resolved in A or B above, formal grievance procedures may be instituted.
 - STEP 1. The grievant may invoke the formal grievance procedure through the Association on the grievance form which will be available from the Association representative. A copy of the grievance form shall be delivered to the principal or appropriate supervisor. A grievance must be filed within twenty (20) days of the occurrence or knowledge of the event of which he/she complains.

Within five (5) days of receipt of the written grievance, the principal or appropriate supervisor shall meet with the grievant who may be accompanied by one (1) other member of the Association in an effort to solve the grievance. The principal or appropriate supervisor shall indicate his/her disposition of the grievance in writing within five (5) days of such meeting and shall furnish a copy thereof to the grievant(s) and to the Association.

STEP 2. If the grievant is not satisfied with the disposition of the grievance, the grievance shall be transmitted to the Superintendent within five (5) days. Within ten (10) days upon receipt the Superintendent or acting superintendent shall meet with the grievant and his/her Association representative on the grievance and shall indicate his/her disposition of the grievance in writing within five (5) days of such meeting, and shall furnish a copy thereof to the grievant(s) and to the Association.

STEP 3. If the grievant is not satisfied with the disposition of the grievance by the superintendent, the grievance shall be transmitted to the Chairman of the School Board within five (5) days. Within ten (10) days upon receipt the Board shall meet with the grievant and his/her Association representative on the grievance and shall indicate the disposition of the grievance in writing within five (5) days of such meeting, and shall furnish a copy thereof to the grievant(s) and to the Association.

STEP 4. If the grievant is not satisfied with the disposition of the grievance by the Board, the grievance, only at the option of the Association, may be submitted before an impartial arbitrator. The Association shall exercise its rights of arbitration by giving the Superintendent written notice of its intention to arbitrate within ten (10) days of receipt of the written disposition of the Board. If the parties cannot agree to the arbitrator within five (5) days from the notification date that arbitration will be pursued, the arbitrator shall be selected by the American Arbitration Association in accordance with its rules, which rules shall likewise govern the arbitration proceeding. The parties shall not be permitted to assert in such arbitration proceeding any ground rule or to rely on any evidence not presented at an earlier step. The decision of the arbitrator shall be final and binding upon both parties.

SECTION 4. ARBITRATION

- A. The arbitrator shall be without power or authority to add to, subtract from, or alter any of the language of this Agreement. The arbitrator shall have the authority to rule on any/all procedural challenges.
- B. Each party shall bear its own cost of arbitration, except that the fees and charges of the arbitrator shall be shared equally by both parties.
- C. All hearings or conferences pursuant to this grievance procedure shall be scheduled at a time and place which will afford a reasonable opportunity for all parties entitled to attend to be present, including any and all witnesses.

SECTION 5. ELECTION OF REMEDIES

In all matters of non-renewal, discharge, or adverse effect of contract as applied to regular employees, there shall be provisions for election of remedies. If arbitration is elected, the employee shall, in writing, waive all rights provided by statute. If statutory review and appeal is elected, both the employee and the Association shall, in writing, waive any and all rights to proceed under the grievance procedure. If grievance hearings are held during the workday, no employee involved in the grievance hearing as a witness or grievant shall suffer loss of salary or other benefits.

SECTION 6. TIME LIMITS

- A. The time limits provided in this Article shall be strictly observed unless extended by written agreement of the parties. In the event a grievance is filed after May 15 of any year, the District shall use its best efforts to process such grievance prior to the end of the school term or as soon thereafter as possible.
- B. Failure of the Association to proceed with its grievance within the time herein established shall result in the dismissal of the grievance. Failure of the Board or its representatives to take the required action within the time provided shall entitle the Association and/or grievant to proceed to the next step of the grievance procedure.

SECTION 7. REPRISALS

No reprisals of any kind shall be taken by the District or by the Association or any of its members against any party of interest who participates in the grievance procedure by reason of such participation.

SECTION 8. CONTINUITY OF GRIEVANCE

Notwithstanding the expiration of this Agreement, any claim or grievance arising hereunder may be processed through the grievance procedure until resolution.

ARTICLE X - DURATION

SECTION 1. RATIFICATION/TERM OF AGREEMENT

- A. This Agreement shall be effective as of **September 1, 2018** shall be binding upon the parties and their members, and shall remain in full force and effect through **August 31, 2019**.
- B. This Agreement must be ratified by the Board and by the Association and executed by authorized representatives thereof.

SECTION 2. SPECIAL CONSIDERATIONS

The Association shall work with the District on District-wide in-services, e.g., technological planning and training for at-risk students.

SECTION 3. RE-OPENERS

- A. Any section(s) of this Agreement shall be re-opened for bargaining at any time both the District and the Association agree in writing to such an action or whenever either party perceives changes in law, WAC or court decisions affect employment conditions.
- B. Either party may upon written notice to the other by not later than ninety (90) days prior to the aforesaid expiration date of the Agreement indicate their desire to bargain a successor Agreement.

APPENDIX A-1 Salary Schedule 2022-25 MANSFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT

Ser.									MA +90
Yrs	BA	BA+15	BA+30	BA+45	BA+90	BA+135	MA	MA+45	PhD
0	45,733	46,968	47,502	48,765	52,818	55,427	53,983	58,035	60,649
1	46,349	47,600	48,142	49,459	53,554	56,150	54,583	58,677	61,271
2	46,935	48,199	48,744	50,166	54,248	56,870	55,188	59,269	61,893
3	47,539	48,816	49,366	50,831	54,905	57,592	55,760	59,800	62,520
4	48,132	49,429	50,012	51,528	55,627	58,332	56,361	60,459	63,166
5	50,306	50,867	51,662	52,235	56,318	59,078	56,970	61,051	63,814
6	50,710	51,505	52,074	52,949	57,014	59,788	57,595	61,659	64,433
7	51,370	52,058	52,396	54,168	58,292	61,142	58,768	62,890	65,743
8	51,810	53,243	54,095	56,013	60,192	63,149	60,610	64,792	67,746
9		54,475	55,890	57,875	62,154	65,210	62,473	66,754	69,809
10			57,705	59,836	64,171	67,329	64,435	68,771	71,928
11				61,853	66,282	69,504	66,452	70,882	74,102
12				63,807	68,451	71,768	68,549	73,050	76,369
13				67,540	70,672	74,089	70,719	75,270	78,686
14				72,042	72,905	76,496	72,953	77,649	81,095
15				74,294	74,801	78,486	74,850	79,668	83,204
16					76,297	80,054	76,346	81,257	84,867
17					78,815	82,696	78,866	83,942	87,669
18					81,414	85,424	81,467	86,712	90,561
19					84,102	88,244	84,157	89,574	93,550
20+					86,877	91,156	86,933	92,530	96,636

APPENDIX B – CO-CURRICULAR SALARY SCHEDULE MANSFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT

Co-Curricular Salary Schedule

JH/HS Advisor	\$	250.00
Elem School Event Advisor	\$	250.00
HS ASB Advisor	\$	500.00
Science Camp Advisor w/ Fund Raising	\$ 1,	500.00
Science Camp Advisor NO Fund Raising	\$	750.00
Yearbook w/ Class	\$	250.00
Yearbook NO Class	\$	750.00
After School CLUB Advisor	\$	250.00
Teacher Mentorship	\$	500.00
Project Fair	\$	250.00

APPENDIX C-1 - TEACHER EVALUATION – STUDENT GROWTH GOAL SETTING

Mansfield School District

Student Growth Report

Teacher Name:		Grade	e Level/Subject:	
Select Criterion:	Subgroup (3)	Class (6)	Team (8)	_
Goals and timeline	<u>es:</u>			
A				
Assessments to be	usea:			
Results:				
Reflection:				
			-	
Teacher		Date	Evaluator	Date

APPENDIX C-2 - TEACHER EVALUATION

Comprehensive

MANSFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT/MARZANO FRAMEWORK

TEACHER EVALUATION

Teacher:			-	Grd Level(s)	
Evaluator:	NO		_	Date	
Criteria 1: Centering Instruction On High Expectations For Student Achievement.	Unsatisfactory 1	Basic 2	Proficient 3	Distinguished 4	
1.1: Providing Clear Learning Goals and Scales (Rubrics)					
1.2: Celebrating Success					
1.3: Understanding Students' Interests and Backgrounds					
1.4: Demonstrating Value and Respect for Typically Underserved Students					
Totals	0	0	0	0	0
	4-5	6-8	9-13	14-16	
Any check in the basic or unsatisfactory column provided for proficient		nt. A comme	ent may be		

Comment:

Criteria 2: Demonstrating Effective Teaching Practices	Unsatisfactory 1	Basic 2	Proficient 3	Distinguished 4	
2.1: Interacting with New Knowledge					
2.2: Organizing Students to Practice and Deepen Knowledge					
2.3: Organizing Students for Cognitively Complex Tasks	0.000				
2.4: Asking Questions of Typically Underserved Students					
2.5: Probing Incorrect Answers with Typically Underserved Students					
2.6: Noticing When Students Are Not Engaged					
2.7: Using and Applying Academic Vocabulary	V				
2.8: Evaluating Effectiveness of Individual Lessons and Units					
Totals	0	0	0	0	0
地名在 拉尔西尔克斯克尔森美国巴克克斯	8-12	13-17	18-25	26-32	

Comment:

Criteria 3: Recognizing Individual Student Learning	Unsatisfactory 1	Basic 2	Proficient 3	Distinguished 4	
3.1: Effective Scaffolding of Information Within a Lesson					
3.2: Planning and Preparing for the Needs of All Students					T.
3.1 Establish Student Growth Goal(s)					
3.2 Achievement of Student Growth Goal(s)					
Totals	0	0	0	0	0
	4-5	6-8	9-13	14-16	

Comment:

Criteria 4: Providing Clear and Intentional Focus On Subject Matter Content and Curriculum	Unsatisfactory 1	Basic 2	Proficient 3	Distinguished 4	
4.1: Attention to Established Content Standards					
4.2: Use of Available Resources and Technology					
Totals	0	0	0	0	0
	2	3-4	5-6	7-8	
Any check in the basic or unsatisfactory column provided for proficient		ent. A comme	nt may be		

Comment:

Criteria 5: Fostering and Managing a Safe, Positive Learning Environment	Unsatisfactory 1	Basic 2	Proficient 3	Distinguished 4	
5.1: Organizing the Physical Layout of the Classroom					
5.2: Reviewing Expectations to Rules and Procedures					
5.3: Demonstrating "With-it-ness"					
5.4: Applying Consequences for Lack of Adherence to Rules and Procedures					
5.5: Acknowledging Adherence to Rules and Procedures					
5.6: Displaying Objectivity and Control	. [
Totals	0	0	0	0	0
	6-8	9-12	13-18	19-24	

Comment:

Criteria 6: Using Multiple Student Data Elements To Modify Instruction and Improve Student Learning	Unsatisfactory 1	Basic 2	Proficient 3	Distinguished 4	
6.1: Designing Instruction Aligned to Assessment					
6.2: Using Multiple Data Elements					
6.3: Tracking Student Progress					
6.1 Establish Student Growth Goal(s)					
6.2 Achievement of Student Growth Goal(s)					
Totals	0	0	0	0	0
	5-7	8-11	12-16	17-20	

Comment:

Criteria 7: Communicating and Collaborating with Parents and the School Community	Unsatisfactory 1	Basic 2	Proficient 3	Distinguished 4	
7.1: Promoting Positive Interactions about Students and Parents – Courses, Programs and School Events					
7.2: Promoting Positive Interactions about Students and Parents – Timeliness and Professionalism					
Totals	0	0	0	0	0
	2	3-4	5-6	7-8	A TOTAL

Comment:

Criteria 8: Exhibiting Collaborative And Collegial Practices Focused On Improving Instructional Practice And Student Learning	Unsatisfactory 1	Basic 2	Proficient 3	Distinguished 4	
8.1: Seeking Mentorship for Areas of Need or Interest					
8.2: Promoting Positive Interactions with Colleagues					
8.3: Participating in District and School Initiatives					
8.4: Monitoring Progress Relative to the Professional Growth and Development Plan					
8.1 Establish Team Student Growth Goal(s)					
Totals	0	0	0	0	0
	5-7	8-11	12-16	17-20	

Any check in the basic or un	nsatisfactory column vided for proficient	n requires a comme and distinguished.	ent. A comme	nt may be		
FINAL SUMMARY						Criteria Score
Criteria 1: Centering Instru	ction On High Ex	pectations For	Student Ach	ievement.		
Criteria 2: Demonstrating E	Iffective Teachin	g Practices				
Criteria 3: Recognizing Indi	ividual Student L	_earning				
Criteria 4: Providing Clear	and Intentional F	ocus On Subjec	t Matter Coi	ntent and Cu	rriculum	Sale.
Criteria 5: Fostering and Ma						
Criteria 6: Using Multiple Stud					Learning	
Criteria 7: Communicating			March 199			
Criteria 8: Exhibiting Collabo Practice And Student Learni		gial Practices Foo	cused On Im	proving Instru	uctional	
Tradito And Otadon Lourn	119				Total	0
Preliminary Summative Rating:		Unsatisfactory 8 - 14	Basic 15 - 21	Proficient 22 - 28	Distinguished 29 -32	
WILLIAM WE BUILT COMPANY				erall Rating	23 32	
Student Growth	3.1	3.2	6.1	6.2	8.1	Total
	0	0	0	0	0	0
		Low 5 - 12	Average 13 - 17	High 18 - 20	Studen	t Growth Rating
		Final Teac	her Rating			
		Unsatisfactory	Basic	Proficient	Distinguished	
	High	N/C	N/C	N/C	N/C	
	Average	N/C	N/C	N/C	N/C	1

Based on artifacts collected and	observations done on the fo	ollowing dates:	-111, 40-V
	has an overall ra	nting	
Teacher name	of		
Evaluator	Date	Teacher	Date

N/C

N/C

N/C

Proficient

Average

Low

APPENDIX C-3 - EVALUATION WORKSHEET & REPORT - CLASSROOM TEACHERS MANSFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT/MARZANO FRAMEWORK

Teacher:	S (1) TEACH	ER EVALUA	ATION -	Grd Level(s)	
Evaluator:			-	Date	
Student Growth Selection	Type 3 or 6		-		
Criteria 1: Centering Instruction On High Expectations For Student Achievement.	Unsatisfactory 1	Basic 2	Proficient 3	Distinguished 4	
1.1: Providing Clear Learning Goals and Scales (Rubrics)					
1.2: Celebrating Success					
1.3: Understanding Students' Interests and Backgrounds					
1.4: Demonstrating Value and Respect for Typically Underserved Students					
.1 Establish Student Growth Goal(s)					
.2 Achievement of Student Growth Goal(s)					
Totals	0	0	0	0	0
	6-8	9-12	13-18	19-24	
Any check in the basic or unsatisfactory be provided for pro	column requires a	comment. A co	omment may		
Comment: Student Growth	.1	.2			Total
	0	0			0
	Low	Average	High		
	2 - 3	4 - 6	7 - 8	Student Grow	th Rating
Based on artifacts collected and dates:	observations d		following		
Teacher name	nas an overe	rating of			
Evaluator	Date		Teacher		Date

Teacher:			•	Grd Level(s)	
Evaluator:	15.45.4			Date	_
Student Growth Selection	Type 3 or 6				
Criteria 2: Demonstrating Effective Teaching Practices	Unsatisfactory 1	Basic 2	Proficient 3	Distinguished 4	
2.1: Interacting with New Knowledge					
2.2: Organizing Students to Practice and Deepen Knowledge					
2.3: Organizing Students for Cognitively Complex Tasks					
2.4: Asking Questions of Typically Underserved Students	13				
2.5: Probing Incorrect Answers with Typically Underserved Students					
2.6: Noticing When Students Are Not Engaged					
2.7: Using and Applying Academic Vocabulary					
2.8: Evaluating Effectiveness of Individual Lessons and Units					
.1 Establish Student Growth Goal(s)					
.2 Achievement of Student Growth Goal(s)					
Totals	0	0	0	0	0
Any check in the basic or unsatisfactor	10-15	16-21	22-31	32-40	
be provided for pr	oficient and disting	ulshed.	ommone may		
Comment:					
Student Growth	.1	.2			Total
	0	0			0
	Low	Average	High		
	2 - 3	4 - 6	7 - 8	Student Grow	th Rating
Based on artifacts collected an dates:	d observations	done on the	following		
Togetor name	has an over	all rating of			
Teacher name					
Evaluator	Date		Teacher		Date

FOCUS(3) TEACHER EVALUATION

Teacher:				Grd Level(s)	
Evaluator:				Date	
Student Growth Selection	Type 3	3			
Criteria 3: Recognizing Individual Student Learning	Unsatisfactory 1	Basic 2	Proficient 3	Distinguished 4	
3.1: Effective Scaffolding of Information Within a Lesson					
3.2: Planning and Preparing for the Needs of All Students					
3.1 Establish Student Growth Goal(s)					
3.2 Achievement of Student Growth Goal(s)				2.	
Totals	0	0	0	0	0
Any check in the basic or unsatisfactory column proficient a Comment:	4-5 requires a comment. nd distinguished.	6-8 A comment may be	9-13 provided for	14 - 16	
Student Growth	3.1	3.2			Total
	0	0			0
	Low	Average	High		
	2 - 3	4-6	7 - 8	Student Gro	wth Rating

FOCUS(4) TEACHER EVALUATION

Teacher:				Grd Level(s)	
Evaluator:		=		Date	
Student Growth Selection	Type 3 or 6				
Criteria 4: Providing Clear and Intentional Focus On Subject Matter Content and Curriculum	Unsatisfactory 1	Basic 2	Proficient 3	Distinguished 4	
4.1: Attention to Established Content Standards					
4.2: Use of Available Resources and Technology	200				
.1 Establish Student Growth Goal(s)					
.2 Achievement of Student Growth Goal(s)				T- III	
Totals	0	0	0	0	0
	4-5	6-8	9-13	14-16	485.9
Any check in the basic or unsatisfactory column	requires a comment. and distinguished.	A comment may be	provided for		
Comment:	-				The state of the s
Student Growth	.1	.2			Total
	0	0			0
	Low	Average	High		
	2 - 3	4 - 6	7 - 8	Student Gro	wth Ratin
				3.15.22	EV. LENG
	A SEASON AND RESIDENCE				
Based on artifacts collected and observadates:					
Teacher name	has an overall ra				-
Evaluator	Date		Teacher		Date

FOCUS(5) TEACHER EVALUATION

Teacher:		4)		Grd Level(s)	
Evaluator:			_	Date	
Student Growth Selection	Type 3 or 6		_		
Criteria 5: Fostering and Managing a Safe, Positive Learning Environment	Unsatisfactory 1	Basic 2	Proficient 3	Distinguished 4	
5.1: Organizing the Physical Layout of the Classroom					
5.2: Reviewing Expectations to Rules and Procedures					
5.3: Demonstrating "Withiness"					
5.4: Applying Consequences for Lack of Adherence to Rules and Procedures					
5.5: Acknowledging Adherence to Rules and Procedures					
5.6: Displaying Objectivity and Control					
.1 Establish Student Growth Goal(s)					
.2 Achievement of Student Growth Goal(s)					
Totals	0	0	0	0	0
THE WILL WATER THE SECOND	8-12	13-17	18-25	26-32	
Any check in the basic or unsatisfactory	column requires a commen ficient and distinguished.	t. A comment ma	y be provided for		
Comment:					
Student Growth	.1	.2			Total
	0	0			0
	Low	Average	High		
	2 - 3	4 - 6	7 - 8	Student Gro	wth Rating
Based on artifacts collected and dates:	observations done on	the following	S 1		
Toolog	has an overall rating	g of			•:
Teacher name					
Evaluator	Date		Teacher		Dato

FOCUS(6) TEACHER EVALUATION

Teacher:				Grd Level(s)	
Evaluator:				Date	
Student Growth Selection	Type 6	6			
Criteria 6: Using Multiple Student Data Elements To Modify Instruction and Improve Student Learning	Unsatisfactory 1	Basic 2	Proficient 3	Distinguished 4	
6.1: Designing Instruction Aligned to Assessment					
6.2: Using Multiple Data Elements					
6.3: Tracking Student Progress					
6.1 Establish Student Growth Goal(s)					
6.2 Achievement of Student Growth Goal(s)					
Totals	0	0	0	0	0
	5-7	8-11	12-16	17 - 20	14.00
Any check in the basic or unsatisfactory column proficient a	requires a comment. nd distinguished.	A comment may be	provided for		
Comment:					
Student Growth	6.1	6.2			Total
	0	0		,	0
	Low	Average	High		
	2 - 3	4-6	7 - 8	Student Gro	wth Rating
Based on artifacts collected and observa dates:	tions done on the	e following	0.00		
Teacher name	has an overall r	rating of			
Evaluator	Date		Teacher	28 8 5	Date

FOCUS(7) TEACHER EVALUATION

Proficient 3	Date	
		CAR CHAR
3	Distinguished 4	
All I		
0	0	0
		Total
		0
High		
7 - 8	Student Gr	owth Rating
	9-13 ay be provided fo	9-13 14-16 ay be provided for High

(The evaluee's signature indicates that he/she has read and discussed the document in a conference but does not necessarily imply agreement.)

Teacher

Date

Evaluator

Date

FOCUS(8) TEACHER EVALUATION

Teacher:				Grd Level(s)	
Evaluator:	7160	1000		Date	
Student Growth Selection T	ype 8	8			
Criteria 8: Exhibiting Collaborative And Collegial Practices Focused On Improving Instructional Practice And Student Learning	Unsatisfactory 1	Basic 2	Proficient 3	Distinguished 4	
8.1: Seeking Mentorship for Areas of Need or Interest					
8.2: Promoting Positive Interactions with Colleagues					
8.3: Participating in District and School Initiatives				34.2	
8.4: Monitoring Progress Relative to the Professional Growth and Development Plan					E
8.1 Establish Team Student Growth Goal(s)					
Totals	0	0	0	0	0
Any check in the basic or unsatisfacto	5-7	8-11 nment. A comment may	12-16 be provided for	17-20	
	proficient and distinguished	ed.			
Comment:					I
Student Growth		8.1			Total
The state of the s	Low	0 Average	High		0
	1	2 - 3	4	Student Gr	owth Ratin
Based on artifacts collected ar dates:	nd observations don	e on the following			
Teacher name	has an overall ratin	g of			
Evaluator	Date		Teacher		Date

APPENDIX C-4 OBSERVATION WORKSHEET & REPORT - CLASSROOM TEACHERS MANSFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT/MARZANO FRAMEWORK

COMPREHENSIVE TEACHER OBSERVATION

Teacher: Grd Level/Subject: Date/Time of Observation:		Evaluator: Date Pre-Conference:				
		Criteria 1: Centering Instruction On High Expectations For Student Achievement.	Unsatisfactory	Basic	Proficient	Distinguished
1.1: Providing Clear Learning Goals and Scales (Rubrics)						
1.2: Celebrating Success						
1.3: Understanding Students' Interests and Backgrounds						
1.4: Demonstrating Value and Respect for Typically Underserved Students						
Any check in the basic or unsatisfactory column	n requires a comm	ent. A comment	may be provide	d for proficient and	distinguished	
<u>-</u>				7.3		
Criteria 2: Demonstrating Effective	Unsatisfactory	Basic	Proficient	Distinguished	Not	
Teaching Practices	Unsatisfactory	Basic	Proficient	Distinguished	Not Observed	
	Unsatisfactory	Basic	Proficient	Distinguished	The state of the s	
Teaching Practices 2.1: Interacting with New Knowledge 2.2: Organizing Students to Practice and	Unsatisfactory	Basic	Proficient	Distinguished	A TOTAL SECTION AND ADDRESS OF THE PARTY OF	
Teaching Practices 2.1: Interacting with New Knowledge 2.2: Organizing Students to Practice and Deepen Knowledge 2.3: Organizing Students for Cognitively	Unsatisfactory	Basic	Proficient	Distinguished	A TOTAL SECTION AND ADDRESS OF THE PARTY OF	
Teaching Practices 2.1: Interacting with New Knowledge 2.2: Organizing Students to Practice and Deepen Knowledge 2.3: Organizing Students for Cognitively Complex Tasks 2.4: Asking Questions of Typically	Unsatisfactory	Basic	Proficient	Distinguished	A TOTAL SECTION AND ADDRESS OF THE PARTY OF	
Teaching Practices 2.1: Interacting with New Knowledge 2.2: Organizing Students to Practice and Deepen Knowledge 2.3: Organizing Students for Cognitively Complex Tasks 2.4: Asking Questions of Typically Underserved Students 2.5: Probing Incorrect Answers with	Unsatisfactory	Basic	Proficient	Distinguished	A TOTAL SECTION AND ADDRESS OF THE PARTY OF	
Teaching Practices 2.1: Interacting with New Knowledge 2.2: Organizing Students to Practice and Deepen Knowledge 2.3: Organizing Students for Cognitively Complex Tasks 2.4: Asking Questions of Typically Underserved Students 2.5: Probing Incorrect Answers with Typically Underserved Students 2.6: Noticing When Students Are Not	Unsatisfactory	Basic	Proficient	Distinguished	The state of the s	
Teaching Practices 2.1: Interacting with New Knowledge 2.2: Organizing Students to Practice and Deepen Knowledge 2.3: Organizing Students for Cognitively Complex Tasks 2.4: Asking Questions of Typically Underserved Students 2.5: Probing Incorrect Answers with Typically Underserved Students 2.6: Noticing When Students Are Not Engaged 2.7: Using and Applying Academic	Unsatisfactory	Basic	Proficient	Distinguished	The state of the s	

Criteria 3: Recognizing Individual Student Learning	Unsatisfactory	Basic	Proficient	Distinguished	Not Observed
3.1: Effective Scaffolding of Information Within a Lesson					
3.2: Planning and Preparing for the Needs of All Students					
3.1 Establish Student Growth Goal(s)					
3.2 Achievement of Student Growth Goal(s)					

Any check in the basic or unsatisfactory column requires a comment. A comment may be provided for proficient and distinguished.

Comment:

Criteria 4: Providing Clear and Intentional Focus On Subject Matter Content and Curriculum	Unsatisfactory	Basic	Proficient	Distinguished	Not Observed
4.1: Attention to Established Content Standards					
4.2: Use of Available Resources and Technology					1 11 -0

Any check in the basic or unsatisfactory column requires a comment. A comment may be provided for proficient and distinguished.

Comment:

Criteria 5: Fostering and Managing a Safe, Positive Learning Environment	Unsatisfactory	Basic	Proficient	Distinguished	Not Observed
5.1: Organizing the Physical Layout of the Classroom		12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 1			
5.2: Reviewing Expectations to Rules and Procedures					
5.3: Demonstrating "With-it-ness"					
5.4: Applying Consequences for Lack of Adherence to Rules and Procedures					
5.5: Acknowledging Adherence to Rules and Procedures					
5.6: Displaying Objectivity and Control					

Any check in the basic or unsatisfactory column requires a comment. A comment may be provided for proficient and distinguished.

Comment:

Criteria 6: Using Multiple Student Data Elements To Modify Instruction and Improve Student Learning	Unsatisfactory	Basic	Proficient	Distinguished	Not Observed
6.1: Designing Instruction Aligned to Assessment					
6.2: Using Multiple Data Elements					
6.3: Tracking Student Progress					
6.1 Establish Student Growth Goal(s)					
6.2 Achievement of Student Growth Goal(s)					

Any check in the basic or unsatisfactory column requires a comment. A comment may be provided for proficient and distinguished.

Comment:

Criteria 7: Communicating and Collaborating with Parents and the School Community	Unsatisfactory	Basic	Proficient	Distinguished	Not Observed
7.1: Promoting Positive Interactions about Students and Parents – Courses, Programs and School Events					
7.2: Promoting Positive Interactions about Students and Parents – Timeliness and Professionalism					

Any check in the basic or unsatisfactory column requires a comment. A comment may be provided for proficient and distinguished.

Comment:

Criteria 8: Exhibiting Collaborative And Collegial Practices Focused On Improving Instructional Practice And Student Learning	Unsatisfactory	Basic	Proficient	Distinguished	Not Observed
8.1: Seeking Mentorship for Areas of Need or Interest				i	
8.2: Promoting Positive Interactions with Colleagues					
8.3: Participating in District and School Initiatives					
8.4: Monitoring Progress Relative to the Professional Growth and Development Plan					
8.1 Establish Team Student Growth Goal(s)					

Any check in the basic or unsatisfactory column requires a comment. A comment may be provided for proficient and distinguished.

Comment:

Additional Overall Com	ment (if needed):		
Evaluator	Date	Employee	Date

APPENDIX C-5 OBSERVATION WORKSHEET & REPORT - CLASSROOM TEACHERS MANSFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT/MARZANO FRAMEWORK

FOCUS 1-8

FOCUS #1 TEACHER OBSERVATION

Teacher:		Evaluator:					
Grd Level/Subject:		Date Pre-Conference:					
Date/Time of Observation:	Date/Time of Observation:		Date Post-Conference:				
Criteria 1: Centering Instruction On High Expectations For Student Achievement.	Unsatisfactory	Basic	Proficient	Distinguished	Not Observed		
1.1: Providing Clear Learning Goals and Scales (Rubrics)							
1.2: Celebrating Success							
1.3: Understanding Students' Interests and Backgrounds							
1.4: Demonstrating Value and Respect for Typically Underserved Students							
Any check in the basic or unsatisfactory colum	nn requires a comm	ent. A comment	t may be provide	d for proficient and	distinguished.		
			(V				
eacher signature	Date	Evaluator sig	gnature	Date	Date		
The teacher's signature indicates that he/shecessarily imply agreement.)	e has read and d	iscussed the d	ocument in a c	onference but do	es not		
MANSFIELD SCI FOC	HOOL DISTR SUS #2 TEACH	-		EWORK			
Teacher:		Evaluator:					
Grd Level/Subject:		Date Pre-C	onference:				
Date/Time of Observation:		Date Post-0	Conference:	-			

Criteria 2: Demonstrating Effective Teaching Practices	Unsatisfactory	Basic	Proficient	Distinguished	Not Observed
2.1: Interacting with New Knowledge					

acher signature	Date	Evaluator s	Da	te	
Any check in the basic or unsatisfactory column	n requires a con	nment. A comme	nt may be provid	ed for proficient ar	nd distinguish
.8: Evaluating Effectiveness of ndividual Lessons and Units					
ocabulary					
7: Using and Applying Academic					
.6: Noticing When Students Are Not					
2.5: Probing Incorrect Answers with Typically Underserved Students					
2.4: Asking Questions of Typically Underserved Students					
2.3: Organizing Students for Cognitively Complex Tasks					
.2: Organizing Students to Practice and Deepen Knowledge					

MANSFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT/MARZANO FRAMEWORK

FOCUS #3 TEACHER OBSERVATION

Teacher:	Evaluator:
Grd Level/Subject:	Date Pre-Conference:
Date/Time of Observation:	Date Post-Conference:

Criteria 3: Recognizing Individual Student Learning	Unsatisfactory	Basic	Proficient	Distinguished	Not Observed
3.1: Effective Scaffolding of Information Within a Lesson					
3.2: Planning and Preparing for the Needs of All Students					
3.1 Establish Student Growth Goal(s)				410	
3.2 Achievement of Student Growth Goal(s)					

Comment:							
eacher signature	Date	Evaluator sign	nature	Date			
he teacher's signature indicates that he/sho cessarily imply agreement.) MANSFIELD SCE FOC		ICT/MARZA	NO FRAME		es not		
Teacher:		Evaluator:					
Grd Level/Subject:		Date Pre-Conference:					
Date/Time of Observation:		Date Post-Conference:					
Criteria 4: Providing Clear and Intentional Focus On Subject Matter Content and Curriculum	Unsatisfactory	Basic	Proficient	Distinguished	Not Observe		
4.1: Attention to Established Content Standards							
4.2: Use of Available Resources and Technology	1						
Any check in the basic or unsatisfactory colum	n requires a comm	ent. A comment	may be provided	for proficient and	distinguish		
Comment:							

(The teacher's signature indicates that he/she has read and discussed the document in a conference but does not necessarily imply agreement.)

MANSFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT/MARZANO FRAMEWORK

FOCUS #5 TEACHER OBSERVATION

		Evaluato	r:		
Grd Level/Subject:		Date Pre-Conference:			
Date/Time of Observation:		Date Pos	t-Conference:		
Criteria 5: Fostering and Managing a Safe, Positive Learning Environment	Unsatisfactory	Basic	Proficient	Distinguished	Not Observed
5.1: Organizing the Physical Layout of the Classroom					
5.2: Reviewing Expectations to Rules and Procedures					
5.3: Demonstrating "With-it-ness"					
5.4: Applying Consequences for Lack of Adherence to Rules and Procedures					
5.5: Acknowledging Adherence to Rules and Procedures					
5.6: Displaying Objectivity and Control					
	Date	Evaluator		Date	
ne teacher's signature indicates that he/she cessarily imply agreement.) MANSFIELD SCH	e has read and di	scussed the	document in a c	conference but do	
ne teacher's signature indicates that he/she cessarily imply agreement.) MANSFIELD SCH	e has read and dis	scussed the	document in a control of the control	conference but do	
me teacher's signature indicates that he/she cessarily imply agreement.) MANSFIELD SCH FOCU Teacher:	e has read and dis	CCT/MAR ER OBSEF	document in a control of the control	conference but do	
me teacher's signature indicates that he/she cessarily imply agreement.) MANSFIELD SCH FOCU Teacher: Grd Level/Subject:	e has read and dis	CT/MAR ER OBSER Evaluato Date Pre-	document in a control of the control	conference but do	
	e has read and dis	CT/MAR ER OBSER Evaluato Date Pre-	ZANO FRAM RVATION r: Conference:	conference but do	

6.2: Using Multiple Data Elements
6.3: Tracking Student Progress

Goal(s)					
Any check in the basic or unsatisfactory column	requires a comme	ent. A comme	nt may be provide	ed for proficient and	distinguished
Comment:				- Provident and	
cher signature	Date	Evaluator s	ignature	Date	
	JS #7 TEACH	-		EWORK	
Teacher:		Evaluator:			
Grd Level/Subject:		Date Pre-	Conference:		
Grd Level/Subject: Date/Time of Observation:			Conference:		
	Unsatisfactory			Distinguished	Not Observed
Date/Time of Observation: Criteria 7: Communicating and Collaborating with Parents and the School	Unsatisfactory	Date Post	:-Conference:	Distinguished	
Date/Time of Observation: Criteria 7: Communicating and Collaborating with Parents and the School Community 7.1: Promoting Positive Interactions about Students and Parents – Courses, Programs and School Events 7.2: Promoting Positive Interactions about Students and Parents – Timeliness		Date Post	:-Conference:	Distinguished	Think the Authority of the Control o
Date/Time of Observation: Criteria 7: Communicating and Collaborating with Parents and the School Community 7.1: Promoting Positive Interactions about Students and Parents – Courses, Programs and School Events 7.2: Promoting Positive Interactions about Students and Parents – Timeliness		Date Post	Proficient		Observed
Date/Time of Observation: Criteria 7: Communicating and Collaborating with Parents and the School Community 7.1: Promoting Positive Interactions about Students and Parents – Courses, Programs and School Events 7.2: Promoting Positive Interactions about Students and Parents – Timeliness and Professionalism Any check in the basic or unsatisfactory column		Date Post	Proficient		Observed
Date/Time of Observation: Criteria 7: Communicating and Collaborating with Parents and the School Community 7.1: Promoting Positive Interactions about Students and Parents – Courses, Programs and School Events 7.2: Promoting Positive Interactions about Students and Parents – Timeliness and Professionalism Any check in the basic or unsatisfactory column		Date Post	Proficient		Observed
Priteria 7: Communicating and Collaborating with Parents and the School Community 7.1: Promoting Positive Interactions about Students and Parents – Courses, Programs and School Events 7.2: Promoting Positive Interactions about Students and Parents – Timeliness and Professionalism Any check in the basic or unsatisfactory column		Date Post	Proficient		Observed
Pate/Time of Observation: Criteria 7: Communicating and Collaborating with Parents and the School Community 7.1: Promoting Positive Interactions about Students and Parents – Courses, Programs and School Events 7.2: Promoting Positive Interactions about Students and Parents – Timeliness and Professionalism Any check in the basic or unsatisfactory column		Date Post	Proficient		Observed
Date/Time of Observation: Criteria 7: Communicating and Collaborating with Parents and the School Community 7.1: Promoting Positive Interactions about Students and Parents – Courses, Programs and School Events 7.2: Promoting Positive Interactions about Students and Parents – Timeliness and Professionalism		Date Post	Proficient		Observed

MANSFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT/MARZANO FRAMEWORK

FOCUS #8 TEACHER OBSERVATION

Teacher:		Evaluator:					
Grd Level/Subject:		Date Pre-Conference:					
Date/Time of Observation:		Date Post-Conference:					
Criteria 8: Exhibiting Collaborative And Collegial Practices Focused On Improving Instructional Practice And Student Learning	Unsatisfactory	Basic	Proficient	Distinguished	Not Observed		
8.1: Seeking Mentorship for Areas of Need or Interest							
8.2: Promoting Positive Interactions with Colleagues							
8.3: Participating in District and School Initiatives							
8.4: Monitoring Progress Relative to the Professional Growth and Development Plan							
8.1 Establish Team Student Growth Goal(s)							
Any check in the basic or unsatisfactory column	n requires a comm	ent. A comme	ent may be provide	ed for proficient and	distinguishe		
Comment:							
acher signature	Date	Evaluator	cianature	Date			

APPENDIX C-6 - OBSERVATION WORKSHEET & REPORT – NON-CLASSROOM TEACHERS

MANSFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT/MARZANO FRAMEWORK

Teacher:			_	Position:	
Evaluator:			_	Date:	
Criteria 1: Knowledge and Scholarship in Special Field	Unsatisfactory 1	Basic 2	Proficient 3	Distinguished 4	
1.1: Providing Clear Learning Goals and Scales (Rubrics)					
1.2: Celebrating Success					
1.3: Understanding Students' Interests and Backgrounds					
1.4: Demonstrating Value and Respect for Typically Underserved Students					
Totals	0	0	0	0	0
	4 - 5	6 - 8	9 - 13	14 - 16	3- 1 1 lb m

Comment:

Criteria 2: Specialized Skills	Unsatisfactory 1	Basic 2	Proficient 3	Distinguished 4	
2.1 Designs and conducts a program providing specific and unique services within the individual's specific discipline					
2.2 Demonstrates ability to synthesize and integrate testing and non-testing data concerning the student					
2.3 Administers assessment procedures or organizes and prepares those who will administer assessment procedures					
2.4 Demonstrates ability to assist teachers and administrators integrate specialized information into the regular curricular program					
2.5 Develops goals and objectives consistent with District-level goals and objectives which will facilitate the implementation of programs and service					
Totals	0	0	0	0	0
	5 - 7	8 - 11	12 - 16	17 - 20	ter ein

Comment:

Criteria 3: Management of Special and Technical Environment	Unsatisfactory 1	Basic 2	Proficient 3	Distinguished 4	
3.1 Selects or recommends testing and non-testing devices, materials, or equipment appropriate to student needs.					
3.2 Demonstrates the use and an understanding of the limitations and restrictions of devices, materials, and procedures, etc					
3.3 Uses comparative and interpretive data					
3.4 Creates an environment which provides privacy and protects student and family information, as mandated by codes of ethics, federal and state regulations, and local school District policies					
Totals	0	0	0	0	0
	4 - 5	6 - 8	9 - 13	14 - 16	

Comment:

Criteria 4: The Support Person as a Professional	Unsatisfactory 1	Basic 2	Proficient 3	Distinguished 4	
4.1 Demonstrates awareness of the law as it relates to area of specialization					
4.2 Demonstrates awareness of responsibilities to students, parents, and other educational personnel as defined by the professional code of ethics supported by the support person's competence area					
4.3 Demonstrates commitment to school and professional activities (attendance at local District and state meetings, consortium activities, participation on special committees, etc					
4.4 Demonstrates commitment to the concept of career-long professional growth by participation in workshops and seminars or graduate study					
Totals	0	0	0	0	0
	4 - 5	6 - 8	9 - 13	14 - 16	

Comment:

	0)			
0	0	0	0	0
- 4	5 - 6	7 - 10	11 - 12	
	- 4 res a comm	-4 5-6	- 4 5 - 6 7 - 10 res a comment. A comment may be	- 4 5 - 6 7 - 10 11 - 12 res a comment. A comment may be

Comment:

FINAL SUMMARY					
Criteria 1: Knowledge and Scholarshi	ip in Special Field				
Criteria 2: Specialized Skills		Will Employ			
Criteria 3: Management of Special and	d Technical Enviro	nment	Contention of the F		
Criteria 4: The Support Person as a P					
Criteria 5: Involvement in Assisting P		Education	al Personne		
				Total	0
Preliminary Summative Rating:	Unsatisfactory 5 - 7	Basic 8 - 11	Proficient 12 - 16	Distinguished 17 - 20	

Evaluator	Date	Teacher	Date
Teacher name	has an overall rating of		
Based on artifacts collected and following dates:	observations done on the	·	

APPENDIX D - GRIEVANCE REVIEW REQUEST FORM

MANSFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT

This form is to be utilized in initiating a grievance pursuant to the grievance procedure contained in the Contract between the Board and the Association.

The completed, signed Grievance Review Request must be submitted in presenting a grievance at Steps 1, 2, 3 and 4. The form must be addressed and delivered to the appropriate administrative supervisor at Step 1, and the Superintendent at Steps 2, 3 and 4.

TO:	
Name	Title
Grievant's Name:	
Address:	Home Phone:
Position (or Title):	School:
Department:	
specifically by name and title wh	processing grievances, I have taken the following actions: (Indicate o has officially reviewed the grievance to date.)
- %	
-	
Step 3	
Step 4	
	pecify the section of agreement violated, when the violation occurredation, misapplication or misinterpretation.)
3. The relief I am seeking is:	
Signature:	Date:

APPENDIX F - JUST CAUSE/SEVEN KEY TESTS

(This Appendix is for guidance only)

The basic elements of just cause which different arbitrators have emphasized have been reduced by Arbitrator Carroll R. Daugherty to seven tests. These tests, in the form of questions, represent the most specifically articulated analysis of the just cause standard as well as an extremely practical approach.

A "no" answer to one or more of the questions may mean that just cause either was not satisfied or at least was seriously weakened in that some arbitrary, capricious, or discriminatory element was present.

- 1. NOTICE: "Did the employer give to the employee forewarning or foreknowledge of the possible or probable consequences of the employee's disciplinary conduct?"
- 2. REASONABLE RULE OR ORDER: "Was the Employer's rules or managerial order reasonably related to (a) the orderly, efficient, and safe operation of the Employer's business, and (b) the performance that the Employer might properly expect of the employee?"
- 3. INVESTIGATION: "Did the Employer, before administering the discipline to an employee, make an effort to discover whether the employee did in fact violate or disobey a rule or order of management?"
- 4. FAIR INVESTIGATION: "Was the Employer's investigation conducted fairly and objectively?"
- 5. PROOF: "At the investigation, did the 'judge' obtain substantial evidence or proof that the employee was guilty as charged?"
- 6. EQUAL TREATMENT: "Has the employer applied its rules, orders and penalties even- handedly and without discrimination to all employees?"
- 7. PENALTY: "Was the degree of discipline administered by the Employer in a particular case reasonably related to
- (a) the seriousness of the employee's proven offense, and (b) the record of the employee in his service with the Employer?"
- * The above seven steps may not be strictly adhered to in cases of gross anti-social behavior which may merit immediate corrective action.

APPENDIX G - Transfer Request Form

Name		
considered for vaca	omitted to the District Office prior to the last paid work day of the school year to be ant and new positions which may occur the last paid work day of the school year an of the next school year	
	vacant or new position which may arise between the last paid work day of the school year and the firs hool year, at the following grade level or subject:	st paid
Elementary (K-5), Specify grade level(s)	
Middle School (6	6-8), Specify subjectarea(s)	
High School (9-1	2), Specify subjectarea(s)	
Special Educatio	n, specify assignment desired if available	
Other (not listed	above)	
Co-Curricular As	signment (specify 9th advisor, etc.)	
	orm constitutes a formal request for transfer to the above specified position, and that this request shane last paid work day of the school year and the first paid work day of the next school year.	ıll
Signature	Date	
to be submitted to t	nay be submitted in response to a position posted in-house during the school year. In the office or individual designated in the posting, within the time frame specified.	— Form i
Signature	Date	

APPENDIX H – Plan of Success

New Teaching Assignment Goal Setting

Teacher:	School Year:
Teaching Assignment:	
Goals and Responsibilities:	
This section will contain specific goa	l(s) that are needed to prepare the teacher for their new
teaching assignment AND the district's	responsibility and teacher's responsibility in achieving the
goal(s).	
i.e.	
Goal 1:	
Thoroughly understand the Com- Responsibilities:	mon Core State Standards for the assigned content area.
Teacher: Research, review and b	pecome familiar with content CCSS.
District: Provide 3 hours of paid	time at per diem rate.
Timeline(s):	
This section will contain a measureable	timeline for completing the goal(s) listed above.
i.e.	
Goal 1 will be completed by August	31 of current year.
Evidence(s):	
This section will contain evidence(s) to l	be provided that will reflect the completion of goal(s) listed.
i.e.	
Goal 1 evidence: List of content CC	SS accessed by teacher upon request of principal.
This document will be an agreement betw	een the district and the teacher which must be completed
cooperatively for compensation to occur.	•
Administrator Signature	Teacher Signature
Date	Date

SIGNATORIES

For the Mansfield Professional Educators:

For the Mansfield School Board:

Stacy a. Sillause Affected Cassol Sand

Date 11/20/22

Date ///20/22